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Year ending 31st March  2011  2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

Tonnes            

1. Production            

Oxides of Iron (MT)   4961  5119 5147 6168 6065 6704 6494 6568 6304 5906 

Dry Cement Paint (MT)  2762  3803 3515 4063 4478 4826 3896 4616 4186 3030 

Exterior Emulsion Paint (KL)  197  190 210 255 152 157 147 226 520 293 

Acrylic Distemper (MT)  240  169 197 245 148 138 89 94 170 134 

Wall Plus Putty (MT)  2386  3468 4702 6252 7242 8730 11215 12506 8420 8482 

Water Base Primer (KL)  412  451 541 580 440 401 319 294 407 311 

Synthetic Enamel  63  86 94 189 191 375 477 378 434 521 

Metal Primer  103  84 146 232 285 14 17 57 97 63 

2. Sales 
           

Oxides of Iron (MT)  4926  5034 5158 5905 6103 6553 6292 6715 6474 5588 

Dry Cement Paint (MT)  2788  3770 3486 4048 4377 4726 3983 4493 4149 3067 

Exterior Emulsion Paint (KL)   202  192 209 243 152 152 142 214 480 331 

Acrylic Distemper (MT)  257  168 182 234 148 127 91 111 166 143 

Wall Plus Putty (MT)  2389  3442 4712 6146 7229 8737 11065 12467 8621 8368 

Water Base primer (KL)  413  455 536 571 434 383 312 315 391 320 

Synthetic Enamel  89  88 74 206 190 375 463 381 410 513 

Metal Primer  106  85 143 233 269 26 19 51 95 72 

3. Gross Income  5046  5960 7101 9527 10294 11605 11821 11850 11764 12476 

4. Gross Block  817.33  851.75 2631.50 2615.40 1864.36 1879.69 1895.83 1919.84 1989.67 

5. Net Block  251.74  232.01 1912.60 1762.90 1835.85 1728.54 1608.22 1490.00 1376.17 1312.71 

6. Capital & Reserves  2096.26  2526.54 2842.95 3287.25 3647.54 4157.59 4645.15 5015.68 5401.29 5792.75 

7. Borrowings  - - - -     – - 

8. Current Assets  2545.91  2470.03 2557.20 3315.95 3777.56 4868.31 5526.39 6609.36 7081.18 7413.64 

(including Investments)             

9. Current liabilities  597.55  865.98 1438.87 1634.52 1822.09 2265.28 2153.31 2522.26 2583.97 1989.67 

 

2828.29

- - - - -
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Production  

Oxides of Iron (M.T.)  

Cemplus (M.T.)  

Ecoplus Paint (K.L.) 

Ecoplus Distemper (M.T.)  

Wall Plus Putty (M.T.)  

Water Base primer (K.L.) 

Synthetic Enamel 

Metal Primer 

Sales  

Oxides of Iron (M.T.)  

Cemplus (M.T.)  

Ecoplus Paint (K.L.) 

Ecoplus Distemper (M.T.)  

Wall Plus Putty (M.T.)  

Water Base Primer (K.L.) 

Synthetic Enamel 

Metal Primer 

 

Gross Revenue 

Depreciation 

Profit Before Taxes  

Profit After Taxes  

Dividend 

Capital Employed 

Net Worth 

Borrowings 

 

 

 

Net worth per Share 

Earning per Share 

Dividend per Share 

2019 -20 

M.T./KL  

5906 

3030 

293 

134 

8482 

311 

521 

63 

5588 

3067 

331 

143 

8368 

320 

513 

72 

Rs. in lacs 

12476 

143.05 

711.16 

481.88 

75.00 

5792.75 

5792.75 

- 

 

 

Rupees 

7724 

709 

100 

 

2018-19  

M.T./KL  

 

6304 

4187 

520 

170 

8421 

407 

434 

97 

 

6474 

4149 

480 

166 

8621 

391 

410 

95 

Rs. in lacs 

11764 

138.78 

685.71 

476.03 

75.00 

5401.29 

5401.29 

- 

 

 

Rupees 

7202 

650 

100 





Despite the challenging business environment, for the financial year 2019-20, Tata Pigments has 
achieved Gross Income of Rs. 12476 lacs which is a growth of 6 % over the previous year.  In terms of 
bottom-line, the business Profit before Tax has been Rs. 711 lacs in 2019-20, a growth of 4 % as compared to that in the previous 
year. The company has maintained an enriched product mix of more profitable products.

On behalf of the Board, I would like to take this opportunity to acknowledge the valuable contributions of Independent Directors 
Messrs. Roopendra Narayan Roy and Father E Abraham during Board and Audit Committee Meetings. I also would like to 
acknowledge the valuable contributions made by Messrs B.K. Das, Prabhat Kumar and Sandeep Bhattacharya, Directors of the 
company.  

Dear Stakeholders,

(Sanjiv Paul)

In the area of Waste Management, we have been able to register growth over the previous year. This vertical has grown to Rs. 978 
lacs in revenues in 2019-20 from Rs. 12 lac in the previous year. The company is currently working on this with Tata Steel and has 
projects under operation on Balling, Steam Ageing, Oxy Torch operations at Jamshedpur and slag weathering at Galudih. Going 
forward, we will be working closely with IBMD of Tata Steel to grow it further. Currently the company is under Techno-Commercial 
discussion with IBMD for several new projects.

It gives me great pleasure to write to you as Chairman of the Board of The Tata Pigments Limited. The 
year 2019-20 has seen the Indian economy face several challenges, the major one being the 
slowdown in Q4 of FY’20 coupled with the lockdown due to the outbreak of COVID 19. In addition, 
there was pressure to reduce prices to stay ahead of competition and imports (mainly from China) 
which led to erosion of margins. Changing preferences of customers shifting from Flooring colours to 
increased usages of tiles in the semi-urban markets in the Western and Southern parts of the country 
led to drop in market share of the Flooring Colours business. Besides this, increased competition in 
the Painting Services vertical led to margin erosion in the Industrial & Decorative Coating Services 
(IDCS) business.    

The Safety Excellence journey continues to be our focus and the company maintained its record of Zero LTIFR during the current 
year. 

As we continue our journey to create long-term value for our stakeholders, I would like to thank our parent company Tata Steel for 
reposing confidence and providing support to us. I would also like to thank the Government agencies, customers and suppliers for 
their relentless support to the Company. The employees, Union and the Management team have worked very hard during the year 
and I would like to thank them for their tireless commitment to the Company. Finally, I look forward to your continued and valuable 
support in the years to come.

With Best regards

Chairman
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DIRECTORS' REPORT OF THE TATA PIGMENTS LIMITED FOR THE YEAR 2019-20 PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 134 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

1.     FINANCIAL RESULTS     (Rupees in lacs)          
      Current Year   Previous year 

e. Profit after Taxation  531.65   487.81

k. Appropriations:    

j. Profit available for appropriation  4578.78   4137.55

b. Less: Depreciation 143.05   138.78

g. Total Comprehensive Income  481.88   476.03

d. Total Tax Expenses   (179.51)   (197.90)

h. Balance brought forward from previous year 4047.13   3649.74

 (incl deferred tax)

      2019-20        2018-19    

c. Profit before Taxes  711.16   685.71

i. Credit balance of P&L  531.65   487.81

 i) Dividend including tax &   75.00   90.42
  surcharge on Dividend 

To 

a. Gross Profits   862.58   833.61

f. Other comprehensive Income  (49.77)   (11.78)

 Interest      8.37      9.12 147.90

Your Directors are glad to present their report below to its members for the year 2019-20

Members of The Tata Pigments Limited
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3. ASSET MANAGEMENT

 During the year under review your Company has achieved Gross total income of Rs.12476 lacs in comparison with 
Rs.11765 lacs during the year 2018-19. The turnover stands at Rs. 12230 lacs as against Rs.11570 lacs during the 
previous year.

 The Service Contract business has fetched an Income of Rs.3244 lacs as against Rs.2726 lacs during the previous year 
resulting in a growth of 19%.

 Your company has earned an income of Rs.978 lacs through Waste Management projects as against Rs. 12 lacs last 
year.

 The Profit before tax has gone up from Rs.686 lacs in 2018-19 to Rs.711 lacs during the year under review.

2. DIVIDEND

 The Directors recommend payment of dividend @100% of paid up capital for the year ended 31st March 2020.

 Physical Verification of assets was conducted by company as per policy and no major discrepancy was found.

4. GROWTH STRATEGIES

 Your company continues to maintain leadership in Synthetic Iron Oxide Pigments and Flooring Colours. SIO Pigments 
and flooring colours have sustained the business despite severe competition. There has been growth in industrial paint 
products by 16% & 22% as compared to last FY & ABP respectively. In the area of Industrial and Decorative Coating 
Services, the company’s business achieved a growth of 19% compared to FY19.There has been a significant 
improvement in the business of Waste Management from 12 lacs to 978 lacs.
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5. NEW PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT

 The internal production has increased from 3623 MT in 208-19 to 3835 MT in 2019-20. Inadequate availability of Coke 
Oven gas from parent company has been the main reason for reduced production as compared to business plan though 
there is an increase of 5.8% over previous year. 

 The sourcing of Ferrous Sulphate one of the major raw materials of SIO pigments from EPA continues to yield good 
results. 

 In the decorative segment, three new products under brand name of LUXORE (premium interior Emulsion paint), 
WONDER (premium Red Oxide Metal primer) and TISON (Economical Putty) were launched in FY20 and which are 
showing good promise. For sales of these products, Tata Pigments has opened another 34 exclusive counters (Total – 84 
Counters), having tinting machines for emulsion paint sales. Sale of Putty, which is a low margin product for TPL was 
deprioritized in FY20 as the dropping prices would have eroded the margins of TPL. Like last year, this year also, thrust 
has been given for expansion of supporting business substantially and Annual Business Plan has been drawn out 
accordingly.

 In the area of Industrial and Decorative Coating Services, the company acquired new business in Tata Steel long 
Products, TSLBSL & TCIL .

 In line with the parent company’s expectations and the board guidance, your company is giving special emphasis 
towards establishing a new business vertical for treating solid waste generated by Tata Steel Limited. This vertical as a 
service provider/waste processor for the Industrial By-product Management Division of Tata Steel Limited has made 
significant progress in taking up jobs in Tata Steel for the Jamshedpur site. The company has fetched orders valued at 
Rs.11300 lacs spread over 3-5 years from the parent company during the year and several new jobs in Jamshedpur and 
Kalinganagar are expected to start in FY21.

 The company developed several new products in this previous year. The significant ones are listed below:

 3) Initiated site trials of specialized Modified PU paint for trailer body @ Tata DLT.

 2) Commercial plant trails for heat stable yellow oxide (Thermellow).

 2) Laboratory trials of Premium Synthetic Enamel Paint.

 4) Lab trials of Thermoplastic Paints for marking of roads.

 2) Trails for reduction of TDS and TSS in effluent water of ETP.

 3) Commercial trails of Premium Interior Emulsion (LUXORE).

 3) Standardization of Pigments for leatherites customers like Klassik Lamitex, United Decoratives, Mayur Uniquoters
  and HR polycoat

 1) Development of superior grade Pigments (T-160, 301) equivalent to global players.

 4) Standardization of Pigments grades (Red and Yellow oxide) at JSW Paints.

 2) Pilot trails of Bitumen Paint (for Ductile Iron Pipes). Testing of Paint from NSF UK.

 Pigments & Flooring Colors:

 5) Beneficiation of Synthetic Ferric Oxide procured from Tata Steel by process modification.

 6) Designed a Dot Net Platform for inprocess data tracking of Pigment manufacturing process.

 Decorative:

 7) Significant reduction in internal rejection (5% to 1.2%) in FY’20.

 Industrial:

 1) Joint trails with TSL R&D for Pilot scale production of Soil Conditioner.

 Others Areas:

 1) Commercial trails of Graphene Based Paint along with TSL R&D.

 1) Quality enhancement of Semi Glossy Red Oxide Metal Primer for retail market

8
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 Your company has taken various improvement initiatives such as taking up continuous improvement projects involving 
officers, small group activities for workers &amp; Quality Circles with a view to give importance to quality. In TPM, your 
company has achieved first phase I and work is in progress to achieve phase II of TPM and certainly this will increase 
productivity.

 In addition to salary, MD also receives perquisites and reimbursements for utilities such as gas, electricity, water, 
furnishings, repairs, servants’ salaries, society charges and medical reimbursement, club fees and leave travel 
concession for himself and his family, medical/accident insurance which are limited to 140% of his annual salary.

11. AFFIRMATIVE ACTION BY COMPANY

 Independent Directors Mr. Roopendra Narayan Roy and Non-Executive Director Mr. Binod Kumar Das are paid a sum of 
Rs. 1,03,941/- and Rs. 1,79,534/- as commission for the year 2019-20 subject to approval of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee and Board of Directors.

6. ENERGY  CONSERVATION,  TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION & FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO

 Your company has been conferred with Energy Conservation Award by Confederation of Indian Industry under large 
scale category. 

 Your Company has eight Directors including one Managing Director, one Executive Director and two Independent 
Directors in its Board as on date. Except Managing Director no other Directors is drawing salary, benefits, etc. from the 
Company. They also do not hold equity shares of the Company in their individual capacity. The Independent and Non-
executive Directors who are not on employed with the parent company have been paid sitting fees Rs.20,000/- for Board 
Meeting, Rs.15,000/- for Audit Committee Meeting and Rs.7500/- for other meetings such as CSR, NRC Committee 
meeting during the year.

 Your company has formed a Committee of Directors to look after Corporate Social Responsibility. It has spent Rs.14.41 
lacs during the year as CSR expenses as against the budget of Rs.15.51 lacs. The budgeted amount under CSR could not 
be met in spite of the best efforts due to sudden lockdown orders issued by government because of COVID 19 pandemic. 
The balance amount of Rs. 1.10 lacs is being carried forward and will be spent in the first quarter of FY 21. Further details 
in this regard are enumerated in Annexure 4. The Corporate Social Responsibility policy has been adopted by Board of 
Directors and is available at company’s website.

 The particulars in respect of Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption & Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo are 
furnished in Annexure 2.

7. RISK MANAGEMENT

 In Financial Year 2019-20 the total number of identified risks in the Company stands at 10 whereas last year the number 
of identified risks were 8. In the month of January 2020, a risk management workshop was conducted wherein risks 
facing the company were reviewed and the risk register was modified. In the workshop the Risk Owners discussed the 
Early Warning Indicators in detail and action plans along with review mechanism were prepared so as to mitigate these 
risks.

9. BUSINESS EXCELLENCE AND TQM

 Your company has secured 551 marks in the TBEM assessment for 2019-20, an increase of 5% over previous marks 
obtained in the company. Your company plans to again apply for TBEM Assessment in 2021-22.

 2 new risks have been identified and action plans are worked out accordingly.

8. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

10. REMUNERATION DETAILS:

 Mr. Shubhenjit Chaudhuri, current Managing Director of the company has drawn remuneration in the form of salary, 
perquisites and Performance Linked Remuneration during the year 2019-20.

 Mr. Shubhenjit Chaudhuri was given salary of Rs. 90,15,000/- (inclusive of perquisites and performance linked 
incentives).

 Your Company has adopted the Code for Affirmative Action. As on 31st March, 2020, 39 persons belonging to Scheduled 
Caste/Scheduled Tribe are on the payroll of the company. Your company has paid scholarship to 1ST candidate for 
higher education. Company also gives training to 4 SC/ST candidates.

9
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13. ENVIRONMENT

12. DIRECTORS

15. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND 
REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

 Your company always took special efforts to keep pollution free atmosphere. Key parameters are monitored regularly 
and adequate steps are taken to control pollution, and adherence to pollution control norms has been ensured. Your 
company has obtained Consent to Operate (CTO) from Jharkhand Pollution Control Department that is valid for 5 years.

 Mr. Prabhat  Kumar, retires as Director and being eligible offers himself for reappointment.

 Mr. Umesh Kumar Singh, has been appointed as Additional Director w.e.f. 17th February, 2020 and he will be retiring at 
the conclusion of Annual General Meeting. However, he also holds the position of Executive Director.

 Your company upgraded matching to 2015 standards, its Integrated Management System Certification from BSI (British 
Standards Institution) which includes ISO: 9001-2000 on Quality Management System, ISO: 14001-2004 on 
Environmental Management System, and OHSAS: 18001-1999 on Occupational Health & Safety Assessment Series.

14. SAFETY & HEALTH OF EMPLOYEES

 Along with various measures implemented by the Company for the safety of employees, your company has also some 
new safety Clauses such as Consequence Management System for employees and contract employees, Incident 
Investigation Committee, PSM implementation committee, Contractor’s safety management review and CFT audit 
recommendations. New guidelines on COVID 19 are also being prepared as the safety measures in the Company. The 
Safety Excellence journey starts with Apex Safety Council, Divisional Implementation Committee, Safety Audit and 
Observation Committee, Safety Health and Environment Committee (SHE) etc., which are functioning well towards 
achieving safety excellence. Activities involving many people are taken up regularly such as safety training, safety quiz, 
awareness programs, suggestions, etc. As a consequence of these measures your company has maintained zero LTI 
status for the year 2019-20 i.e. 4 years in succession. The company is aiming towards obtaining 5 star rating in its CSMS 
rating for the site jobs performed at Tata Steel.

 The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of The Sexual Harassment of 
Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has 
been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, 
temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy.

 The following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed off during the year 2019-20:

 No. of complaints disposed off :    Not applicable

 i. STATUTORY AUDITORS

 No. of complaints received  :  NIL

 ii. COST AUDITORS

  Your Directors appointed M/s Shome & Banerjee, Cost Accountants having Reg no. 000001 are appointed as 
Cost Auditors of the company for the year 2020-21 at a remuneration of Rs. 1.00 lac plus out of pocket expenses 
and shareholders are requested to ratify the same in the ensuing annual general meeting. 

  It is proposed to recommend M/s. Price Waterhouse& Co Chartered Accountants LLP as Statutory Auditors who 
have been appointed for a period of 5 years from 2017-18 to 2021-22 the shareholders at the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting.

18. ACKNOWLEDGMENT

17. AUDITORS

 On obtaining confirmation from the divisions of the Company of having complied with all the statutory requirements, a 
declaration regarding compliance of the provisions of various statutes is made by the Managing Director/Executive 
Director at each Board meeting.

 Your Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the devoted efforts put in by the employees at all levels for a 
record performance of the Company during the year 2019-20 under the prevailing circumstances.

16. STATUTORY COMPLIANCE

Annual Report 2019-2020

Place : Jamshedpur

Date : May 21, 2020

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Sanjiv Paul

Chairman



a) Extract of the Annual Return as provided under sub-section (3) of Section 92 of Companies Act, 2013

i. Registered office  : Sakchi Boulevard, Jamshedpur-831002

ii. Principal  business  : Manufacturing and  Sale  of  Synthetic  Iron  Oxide  Pigments,  Flooring  Oxides, 

Trading  of Dry Cement Paint, Water based Enamel paints, Distemper, Wall Plus 

Putty, Primer, Emulsion Paints and other paints. Also doing application of paints 

for the past 9 years to reputed business houses in and around Jamshedpur.

iii. Particulars of Holding : The Tata Pigments Limited is a 100% subsidiary of Tata Steel Limited. 

iv. Shares    : It has authorized capital of Rs. 1,00,00,000 (divided into 1,00,000 equity shares of 

Rs. 100 each and paid up capital of Rs. 75,00,000 (divided in to 75000 equity 

shares of Rs. 100 each). 74994 shares are held purely in the name Tata Steel 

Limited and 6 equity shares are held in the Names of individuals as Nominees of 

Tata Steel Limited along with Tata Steel Limited. Your company has dematerialized 

its equity shares in the year 2018-19.

v. Debentures   : It does not have any debentures or other securities

vi. Indebtness   : The Tata Pigments Limited has neither cash credit nor term loan with any 

financial institutions or banks.

Annexure 1

vii. Changes in shareholders : There has been no change in the shareholders of the company during the year.

viii. Changes in Directors  : Mr. Umesh Kumar Singh joined as Director on 17th February’ 20 & was appointed 

as Executive Director wef 1st March’ 20. Mr. Roopendra N Roy & Mr. E. Abraham, 

Independent Directors, completed their tenure on 29th March’ 20 and cease to 

continue.

ix. The details regarding Meetings of Board of Directors, Audit cum Ethics Committee, Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee are as Detailed below:

Audit cum Ethics Committee

Board of Directors

Sl. No.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

Name of Director

Sanjiv Paul

Binod Kumar Das

Sandeep Bhattacharya

Prabhat Kumar

E. Abraham

Roopendra Narayan Roy

Shubhenjit Chaudhuri

Umesh Kumar Singh

Post held

Chairman

Non Independent Director

Non Independent Director

Non Independent Director

Independent Director* (until 29th March’ 20)

Independent Director* (until 29th March’ 20)

Managing Director

Executive Director

Sl. No.

1

2

3

Name of Director

Roopendra Narayan Roy

E. Abraham

Sandeep Bhattacharya

Status

Chairman

Member

Member

11
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Sl. No.

1

2

3

Sl. No.

1

2

3

Name of Director

E. Abraham

Sanjiv Paul

Binod Kumar Das

Name of Director

Binod Kumar Das

Sandeep Bhattacharya

E. Abraham

Status

Chairman

Member

Member

Status

Chairman

Member

Member

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

No. of Meetings attended by Directors

xi. Penalty or punishment imposed on the company, its directors or officers and Details of compounding of offences and 

appeals made against such penalty or punishment at the Tata Pigments Limited during the year 2019-20 is NIL

 • That in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with

  proper explanation relating to material departures;

 • That the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in

  accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for

  preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

 • That the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern bases;

x. Remuneration of Directors: Already given in Main Report

xii. Matters relating to certification of compliances, disclosures. The Tata Pigments Limited have paid taxes on time, filed 

returns prescribed under Central as well as State Legislations on time. The Directors have disclosed their interest in the 

companies in which they are interested at a Board Meeting.

xiii. The Tata Pigments Limited does not have shares held by or on behalf of the Foreign Institutional Investors and the 

question of providing details does not arise.

b) During the year under review 5 meetings of Board of Directors, 4 meetings of Audit cum Ethics Committee, Nomination & 

Remuneration Committee meeting and 4 meetings of Corporate Social Responsibility have been held.

c) DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

 Your Board of Directors confirms:

 • That the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently, and made judgments and

  estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of the Company at the end

  of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period;

 • The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that

  such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Annual Report 2019-2020

Kind of Meeting  
Sanjiv  
Paul  

Binod   
K. Das  

Sandeep  
Bhattacharya  

Prabhat  
Kumar  

E.  
Abraham  

Roopen  
Roy  

No of  
Meeting  
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d) The company has two Independent Directors.

h)      Particulars of contract between related parties as per section 188 is given in Annexure 3.

e) The company does have a Nomination and Remuneration Committee which consists of Mr. E. Abraham as Chairman, 

Mr. Binod Kumar Das and Mr. Sanjiv Paul as members. The Committee selects persons of qualification and experience 

as Managing Director who is appointed based on their qualification and experience. Non Executive Directors other than 

Tata Steel nominated Directors are given sitting fees for attending meetings of Board and other committees. They are 

also paid Commission as per Tata Steel Group Policy.

f)       The Tata Pigments Limited does not have any adverse comments by Auditors.

g)      The company has neither given nor taken loans from other corporates. The company also has not given guarantee and 

investment as defined under section 186.

Place : Jamshedpur

Date : May 21, 2020

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Sanjiv Paul

Chairman
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1. Adoption of better operating process in highly electric energy consuming machine(root blower)

5. Improvement in reactors cleaning facility by using high pressure water jet pump

7. Recycling of rotary air blower refuse water

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGICAL ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE OUTGO AND OTHER POINTS

Conservation of Energy

Annexure 2

2. Auto temperature control system in reactor 1 along with Reactors 4 & 5

3. Air purging system in seed tank

4. Improved iron oxide cake washing of yellow oxide filter press

6. Steam pipe line augmentation at reactor no.1

8. Replacement of high energy consumption lamps with LED lamps

Technological Absorption

Painting Services:

1. Critically high structures painting execution thru rope access

2. Power tool cleaning as ST3 specifications using high speed grinder for buffing of structural steel.

3. Hydro jet cleaning to PSI 5000-10000 range for concrete and structural steel.

4. Putty application through hi pressure mechanised airless spray system

Adoption of automatic colour tinting machines at dealer counters to make 2000 colours available on the spot, reducing 

inventory and increasing customer choice.

Pigment Production:

1. Closed loop temperature control mechanism in 3 reactors to ensure superior productivity and product quality

Sales:

2. Modified air purger system in seed tank to ensure finer and larger numbers of pigment particle seeding.

3. Adoption of Precision Colorimeter to measure color values of liquid slurry for stringent in process control.

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:

Foreign Exchange earned during the year  Rs.Nil

Foreign Exchange spent during the year  Rs. 1,47,75,749/-

Place : Jamshedpur

Date : May 21, 2020

For & On Behalf of Board of Directors

Sanjiv Paul

Chairman
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3. Average net profit of the company for last three financial years: Rs. 775 lacs

2. CSR Committee consists of the following persons viz.

 a) Total amount spent for the financial year : Rs. 14.41 lacs

 3. Mr. E. Abraham – Member

 1. Mr. Binod Kumar Das - Chairman

 2. Mr. Sandeep Bhattacharya -Member

Annexure 3

1. The company has adopted CSR policy. The CSR policy has been broadly divided into 6 categories such as Promotion of 

sanitation and making available safe drinking water; Promotion of education including special education & 

employment enhancing vocations skills especially among children, women & differently abled; Skill development and 

training; Protection of flaura & fauna, Promotion of art, culture & sports etc and sponsorship of studies for poor and 

downtrodden. Additionally, the company has spent on COVID-19 activities in the year 2019- 20.

5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year: Attached as Annexure-IV

 c) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is provided in a separate sheet.

 The CSR policy has been adopted by CSR Committee and also by Board of Directors and is available at company's 

website.

We hereby certify that the CSR Committee that the implementation and monitoring of CSR policy is in compliance with CSR 

objectives and Policy of the company.

4. Prescribed CSR expenditure Rs. 15.51 lacs

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY ACTIVITIES AT THE TATA PIGMENTS LIMITED

 b) Amount unspent, if any : Rs. 1.10 lacs

15
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3.  We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. 

Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 

Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics 

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 

audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our 

other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

 Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Emphasis of matter

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF THE TATA PIGMENTS LIMITED

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

1.  We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The Tata Pigments Limited (“the Company”), which 

comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2020, and the statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 

Comprehensive Income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and 

notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 

information.

2.  In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial 

statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") in the manner so required and give a 

true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the 

Company as at March 31, 2020, total comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other comprehensive income), 

changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for opinion

4.  We draw your attention to Note 27 to the financial statements, which describes the management’s assessment of the 

impact of the outbreak of Coronavirus (Covid-19) on the business operations of the Company. The management 

believes that no adjustments are required in the financial statements as it does not impact the current financial year, 

however, in view of the various preventive measures taken (such as complete lock-down restrictions by the 

Government of India, travel restrictions etc.) and highly uncertain economic environment, a definitive assessment of 

the impact on the subsequent periods is highly dependent upon circumstances as they evolve.

5. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 

information included in the Director’s report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report 

thereon. The Director’s report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

 Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any form of 

assurance conclusion thereon.

 When we read the Director’s report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to 

communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take appropriate action as applicable under the 

relevant laws and regulations.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial statements

6.  The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the 

preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, 

 In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified 

above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 

with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Other Information
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changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in 

India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes 

maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the 

assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of 

appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring 

the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 

financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 

error.

7. In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a 

going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 

accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 

alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting 

process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

8. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 

SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

9. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism 

throughout the audit. We also:

Ÿ  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 

higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Ÿ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our 

opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in 

place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Ÿ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on 

the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 

significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial 

statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 

evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 

Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Ÿ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 

whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 

presentation.

Ÿ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 

related disclosures made by management.

10. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 
during our audit.
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11. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

  i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial

  statements – Refer Note 29 to the financial statements;

  iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection

  Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2020.

 (c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Statement of
  Changes in Equity and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
  account.

 (e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020 taken on record by
  the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a
  director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

14. The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated 

by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

  ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts as at March 31, 2020.

12. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in 
terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure B a statement on the matters specified in 
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

 (a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
  belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

 (g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
  Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
  the explanations given to us:

  iv. The reporting on disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes is not applicable to the Company for the

  year ended March 31, 2020.

 (d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
  Section 133 of the Act.

 (f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
  Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”.

13. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

 (b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
  from our examination of those books.

For Price Waterhouse and Co Chartered Accountants LLP 

Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E300009 

Chartered Accountants

Gautam Wadhera

Partner

Membership Number: 508835 

UDIN: 20508835AAAABQ9776

Place: Mumbai 

Date: May 21, 2020
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1.  We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of The Tata Pigments Limited 

(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the 

year ended on that date.

Auditors’ Responsibility

ANNEXURE A TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 13(f) of the Independent Auditors' Report of even date to the members of The Tata Pigments Limited 

on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2.  The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 

internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 

internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by 

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 

efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 

prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 

timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial 

statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 

Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be 

prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both 

applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance 

Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 

about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and 

maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 

controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 

controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with 

reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 

design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on 

the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of 
Section 143 of the Act

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 

opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

 (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company;

 (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of  financial  
statements  in  accordance  with  generally  accepted  accounting  principles,  and  that receipts and expenditures of 
the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management  and  directors  of  the  
company;  and  

6.  A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that 

Annual Report 2019-2020
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Opinion

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including the 

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may 

occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to 

financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control controls with reference 

to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance 

with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

8.  In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference 

to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating 

effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 

Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 

Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

 (3)  provide  reasonable  assurance  regarding prevention  or  timely  detection  of  unauthorised  acquisition,  use,  
or  disposition  of  the  company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP

Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009

Chartered Accountants

Gautam Wadhera 

Partner 

Membership Number : 508835 

UDIN: 20508835AAAABQ9776

Place: Mumbai 

Date:  May 21, 2020
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vi. Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is required to maintain cost records as 

specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its products. We have broadly reviewed the same, and are of the 

opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not, 

however, made a detailed examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

 (b)  The fixed assets are physically verified by the Management at interval of three years and cover all the assets in 

the year of verification and which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and 

the nature of its assets. The fixed assets of the Company have been physically verified by the Management 

during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification.

vii.  (a)  According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, in 

our opinion, the Company is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues, including provident fund, 

employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, 

goods and service tax and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. We are 

informed that Company has applied for exemption from operation of Employee State Insurance Act. We are 

informed that action taken by the authorities to bring the employee of the Company under Employee’s State 

Insurance Scheme has been contested by the Company and payment has not been made of the contribution 

demanded. Also refer Note 34 to the financial statements regarding management’s assessment on certain 

matters relating to provident fund.

 (b)  According  to the  information  and  explanations  given  to us and  the  records of  the Company examined by 

us, there are no dues of income-tax, duty of customs, duty of excise or goods and service tax which have not 

been deposited on account of any dispute. The particulars of dues of central sales tax, service tax, value added 

tax and entry tax as at March 31, 2020 which have not been deposited on account of dispute, are as follows:

iv. The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments, or provided any guarantees or security to the 

parties covered under Section 185 and 186. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iv) of the said Order are not 

applicable to the Company.

i.  (a)  The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and 

situation, of fixed assets.

Referred to in paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of The Tata Pigments Limited on 

the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2020

ii. The physical verification of inventory, excluding stocks with third parties, have been conducted at reasonable intervals 

by the Management during the year. In respect of inventory lying with third parties, these have substantially been 

confirmed by them. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared to book records were 

not material as compared to book records and have been appropriately dealt with in the books of accounts.

 (c)  The title deeds of immovable properties, as disclosed in Note 3 on fixed assets to the financial statements, are 

held in the name of the Company. In respect of immovable properties of self- constructed buildings on 

leasehold land which are disclosed as fixed assets in the financial statements, the lease agreement is in the 

name of the Company, where the Company is the lessee in the agreement.

  Further, for the period March 1, 2020 to March 31, 2020, the Company has paid Goods and Service Tax and filed 

Form-GSTR 3B after the due date but within the timelines allowed by Ministry of Finance under the Notification 

Number CBEC-20/06/04-2020 -GST] dated April 03, 2020 on fulfilment of conditions specified therein.

iii. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or 

other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iii), 

(iii)(a), (iii)(b) and (iii)(c) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company.

v. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the 

Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified.

ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Annual Report 2019-2020



23

xiii. The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions of Sections 177 and 

188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as 

required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the 

Act.

 Also refer paragraph-14 of the main audit report.

xv. The Company has not entered into any non cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with him. 

Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xi. The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated 

by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the act.

ix. The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public offer (including debt instruments) 

and term loans. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(ix) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

viii. As the Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution or bank or Government, nor has 

it issued any debentures as at the balance sheet date, the provisions of Clause 3(viii) of the Order are not applicable to 

the Company.

x. During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with the 

generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have 

neither come across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, 

noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management. 

xii. As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the provisions of Clause 

3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xiv. The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible 

debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to 

the Company.
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xvi. The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, 

the provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP

Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009

Chartered Accountants

Gautam Wadhera

Partner

Membership Number: 508835

UDIN: 20508835AAAABQ9776

Place: Mumbai 

Date: May 21, 2020
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This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP       
Chartered Accountants      
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E300009    

Sanjiv Paul
Chairman 
(DIN: 00086974) 

Gautam Wadhera
Partner
Membership No 508835

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 21, 2020

Umesh Kumar Singh
Executive Director 
(DIN:08708676)

Dinesh Agarwal
Chief of Finance & Accounts

Place: Jamshedpur
Date : May 21, 2020

See accompanying notes forming part of the  financial statements   

 (a) Financial Liabilities   

    Total Equity and Liabilities    9,231.07  8,471.61

 (b) Retirement benefit obligations 15  99.89 54.49

 (b) Retirement benefit obligations 15  645.33 562.19

       830.34 752.35
 Current liabilities
 (a) Financial Liabilities   

 (b) Other Equity   5,717.75 5,326.29

  (i) Trade Payables   
    a) total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises   90.33 29.39

  (ii) Other financial liabilities 14  129.34 131.84

 (c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) 12  - 58.32

  (ii) Other Financial Liabilities 14  98.64 86.61

 Non-current Liabilities        

    b) total outstanding dues other than (i) (a)   2,129.32 1,977.34

 Equity

       5,792.75 5,401.29

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

  (i) Trade payables 13  55.67 -

 (c) Other non financial liabilities 16  189.80 170.14

 (a) Equity Share Capital 11  75.00 75.00

        2,607.98  2,317.97

  (i) Trade receivables 7  201.20 109.02

 (f) Deferred Tax Assets (net) 12  3.70 -

                                Amount in  Rs. lacs 
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2020 
The Tata Pigments Limited

ASSETS    Notes       
       As at 31.03.2020  As at 31.03.2019

 (a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3  1,224.07 1,308.93
 (b) Capital work-in-progress   10.67 0.91
 (c) Intangible assets 4  77.97 66.33
 (d) Financial assets   

  (ii) Other financial assets 8  20.00 10.83

 Non-current Assets

  (iii) Other Balances with bank 10  1.02 -
 (e) Other non financial assets 9  191.24 192.75

Current Assets

 (g) Non current tax asset   87.56 62.22

 (a) Inventories  5  1,319.53 1,058.03
 (b) Financial assets   
  (i) Current investments 6  3,026.59 2,492.85
  (ii) Trade receivables 7  1,849.57 2,001.67
  (iii) Cash and Cash equivalents 10  65.21 425.26
  (iv) Other Balances with bank 10  501.97 470.86
  (v) Other Financial Assets 8  309.65 19.99
 (c) Other Non financial Assets 9  341.12 251.96
       7,413.64 6,720.62
    Total Assets    9,231.07  8,471.61

       1,817.43 1,750.99
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      March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

II Other Income  18  245.77  194.32

The Tata Pigments Limited

 (b) Purchases of finished, semi-finished and other products  20  1,551.17    

III Total Income (I + II)   12,476.41  11,764.43

 (g) Depreciation and amortisation expense 4(a) 143.05 138.78

 Total Expenses (IV)  11,765.25 11,078.72        

      For the year ended  For the year ended 
                                         Amount in  Rs. lacs 
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2020

     Notes  
I Revenue from Operations 17 12,230.64 11,570.11

IV EXPENSES
 (a) Raw materials consumed 19 2,466.02 2,812.58

 (c) Expenses on Service Contract  3,734.56 2,383.01
 (d) Changes in Inventories of finished goods, 
 work-in-progress and stock- in -trade 21 (292.76) 168.37
 (e) Employee benefit expense 22 1,363.10 1,301.16
 (f) Finance costs 23 8.37 9.12

 (h) Other expenses 24  2,791.74  2,914.73

VI Tax Expense

  (i) Current tax  241.66 220.07

 (2) Deferred tax  12  (62.02) (22.17)
 Total tax expense (VI)  179.51 197.90
VII Profit for the year (V - VI)    531.65  487.81

 (1) Current tax   241.53 220.07

  (ii) Current tax relating to previous years  (0.13) -

 A) (i) Items that will not be reclassified subsequently 
  to the statement of profit or loss    
  Remeasurement gain/(losses) on post employement 
  defined benefit plans  (66.51) (16.32)
  (ii) Income tax on items that will not be reclassified 
  subsquently to the statement of profit or loss  16.74 4.54
 B) (i) Items that will be reclassified subsequently to the 
  statement of profit or loss  - -
  (ii) Income tax on items that will be reclassified to 
  profit or loss   - -
 Total Other Comprehensive Income  (49.77) (11.78)
IX Total comprehensive income for the year (VII +VIII)   481.88  476.03

V Profit before tax (IV-V)   711.16 685.71

VIII Other comprehensive income   

 (2) Diluted (Rs.)  30 708.87 650.41

XI Earnings per Equity share ( for discontinued operations) :   
 Diluted (Rs.)   708.87 650.41

 (2) Diluted (Rs.)   - -
XII Earnings per Equity share ( for continuing & discontinued operations)   

 Basic (Rs.)    708.87 650.41

 (1) Basic (Rs.)   - -

 (1) Basic (Rs.)  30 708.87 650.41

X Earnings per Equity share ( for continuing operations) :  
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This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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See accompanying notes forming part of the  financial statements   

  1,350.97



 Balance as at April 1,2019 Changes during the year  Balance as at March 31, 2020 

 75.00    -      75.00 

Balance as at March 31, 2019 4,047.13 1,449.77  0.17 (170.78) 5,326.29

Profit for the year  531.65 -  - - 531.65

(a)  Equity               Amount in  Rs. lacs 

Re-measurement Gain/(losses) - -  - (49.77) (49.77)

Dividend paid   (75.00) -  - - (75.00)

     Retained General  Capital  Other Compre- Total 

The Tata Pigments Limited
Statement of changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2020

 75.00    -   75.00

     Earning Reserve  Reserve  hensive Income  

Tax on Dividend  (15.42) -  - - (15.42)

(b)  Other Equity                Amount in  Rs. lacs 

Balance as at March 31, 2020 4,488.36 1,449.77  0.17 (220.55) 5,717.75

 Balance as at April 1, 2018 Changes during the year  Balance as at March 31, 2019 

Re-measurement Gain/(losses) - -  - (11.78) (11.78)

Balance As at March 31, 2019 4,047.13 1,449.77  0.17 (170.78) 5,326.29

Tax on Dividend  (15.42) -  - - (15.42)

Profit for the year  487.81 -  - - 487.81

Balance as at March 31, 2018 3,649.74 1,449.77  0.17 (159.00) 4,940.68

Dividend paid   (75.00) -  - - (75.00)
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 Profit before taxes   711.16 685.71

The Tata Pigments Limited
 Statement Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2020
       Amount in  Rs. lacs

 Depreciation and amortisation expense  143.05 138.78

 Inventories    (261.50) 34.36

 Short term Gain   (150.11) (68.02)

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities:

 Operating Profit before changes in current/non current assets and liabilities 637.92 647.95

      For the year ended  For the year ended 
      March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

 Adjustments for:   

 Interest income   (38.61) (37.90)

 Change in fair value of Investment  (14.03) (66.43)
 Finance Costs   8.37 9.12
 Allowance for doubtful debts  21.93 1.40

 Dividend income   - (9.26)

 Inventories write-down  - 9.96
 Liability no longer required written back  (43.84) (15.41)

 Adjustments for (increase)/decrease in operating assets  

 Trade receivables   37.99 76.76

 Retirement benefit assets  - 12.94
 Other Financial Assets non current  (9.50) 20.35
 Other Non financial Assets current  (89.16) 42.78
 Other Non financial Assets non current  1.51 (114.40)

 Adjustments for increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities  
 Trade Payables   312.43 126.76
 Other Financial Liabilities current  12.03 12.31
 Other Financial Liabilities non current  (2.50) 6.50
 Retirement benefit obligations current  45.40 10.64

 Other Financial Assets current  (293.24) (2.41)

 Retirement benefit obligations non-current  16.63 15.17
 Other non financial liabilities  19.66 (76.29)
 Cash Generated from Operations  427.67 813.42

 Net increase in Cash or Cash Equivalents  (360.05) (132.28)

 Cash and cash equivalents as per note 10  65.21 425.26

 In Deposit Account   - 42.00

 Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per  

 Purchase of Current Investments  (13,990.00) (2,890.00)

 Fixed/Restricted deposits with banks  (32.13) (58.76)

 Tax on dividend paid   (15.42) (15.42)

 Net Cash Flow from/(used in) investing activities  (438.80) (607.23)

 Interest and other borrowing costs paid  (8.37) (9.12)
 Dividend Paid    (75.00) (75.00)

B.  Cash Flow from Investing Activities:   

 Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year  65.21 425.26

 In Current Account   64.87 383.18

 Net Cash Flows from/(used in) Operating Activities  177.54 574.49

 Purchase of property, plant and equipment  (79.59) (24.92)

 

C.  Cash Flows from Financing Activities:   

 Cash in Hand    0.34 0.08

 Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year  425.26 557.54

 Proceeds from sale of Current Investments  13,620.40 2,290.75

 Dividend received   - 9.26

 Income tax paid   (250.13) (238.93)

 Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Financing Activities  (98.79) (99.54)
  

 Interest income received  42.52 66.44
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The Tata Pigments Limited

1. Company Information

Notes to the financial statements 

2.02 Basis of preparation and presentation

 The Company is one of the largest manufacturers of Synthetic Iron Oxide in India producing as 
per the ISI specifications. Its range of products include flooring colours in five colours under the 
brand name of Tata Red, Tata Black, Tata Yellow, Tata Green and Tata Blue. The Company also 
manufacturers dry cement paint under brand name of Cemplus and Ecocem, water based 
emulsion paints, distemper, primer, Wallplus Putty, etc. through BPO route over the past decade. It 
has diversified in to Industrial Decorative and Coating services and has been mainly catering to 
Tata Steel group of companies and Waste Management Business to Tata Steel.

 The Tata Pigments Limited (“the Company”) is a public limited Company incorporated in India 
with its  registered office in Jamshedpur, Jharkhand, India.

 The functional and presentation currency of the Company is Indian Rupee (“INR”) which is the 
currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates.

 As on March 31, 2020, Tata Steel Limited, owns 100% of the Ordinary shares of The Tata Pigments 
Limited, and has the ability to significantly influence the Company’s operations.

 The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 were approved by the Board of 
Directors and authorised for issue on May 21, 2020.

2. Significant accounting policies

 The significant accounting policies applied by the Company in the preparation of its financial 
statements are listed below. Such accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the 
periods presented in these financial statements, unless otherwise indicated.

2.01 Statement of Compliance

 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting 
Standards  (referred to as “Ind AS”) prescribed under section 133 of the companies Act, 2013 read 
with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, as amended from time to time.

 The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention with the 
exception of certain assets and liabilities that are required to be carried at fair values by Ind AS.

 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid for transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

 All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s 
normal  operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. 
Based on the  nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing 
and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating 
cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and 
liabilities.

 The Directors of the Company have assessed its liquidity position (including the impact of COVID-
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19) and its possible sources of funds. The Board of Directors are confident of the Company’s ability 
to meet its obligations in the next twelve months from the balance sheet date. Accordingly, these 
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

2.03    Use of estimates and critical accounting judgement

 In the preparation of financial statements, the Company makes judgements, estimates and 
assumptions about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from 
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and 
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and future 
periods affected.

 Key source of estimation of uncertainty at the date of financial statements, which may cause 
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial 
year, is in respect of impairment, useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible 
assets, valuation of deferred tax assets, provisions, contingent liabilities and fair value 
measurements of financial instruments as discussed below. Key source of estimation of 
uncertainty in respect of revenue recognition and employee benefits have been discussed in the 
respective policies.

 Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

 The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at 
the end of each reporting period. This reassessment may result in change in depreciation and 
amortisation expense in future periods.

 Valuation of deferred tax assets

 The Company reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting 
period.

 When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet 
cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using 
valuation techniques including Discounted Cash Flow Model. The inputs to these models are 
taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of 
judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs 
such as liquidity risks, credit risks and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors 
could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

 Provisions and contingent liabilities

 A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as result of a past event 
and it is  probable that the outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect 
of which a reliable estimate can be made. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and 
adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the 
financial statements. Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial 
statements.

 Fair value measurements of financial instruments
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2.06 Depreciation and amortization of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

 Depreciation on assets under construction commences only when the assets are ready for their 
intended use. The estimated useful lives for main categories of property, plant and equipment 
and intangible assets are:

 The Company’s retirement benefit obligation are subject to a number of judgement including 
discount rates, inflation and salary growth. Significant judgement is required when setting these 
criteria and a change in these assumptions would have a significant impact on the amount 
recorded in the Company’s balance sheet and the statement of profit and loss. The Company sets 
these judgement based on previous experience and third party actuarial advice.

 Software costs are included in the balance sheet as intangible assets when it is probable that 
associated future economic benefits would flow to the Company. In this case they are measured 
initially at purchase cost and then amortised on a straight line basis over their estimated useful 
lives. All other costs on patents, trademarks and software are expensed in the statement of profit 
and loss as and when incurred.

 Retirement benefit obligations

 Depreciation or amortisation is provided so as to write off, on a straight line basis, the 
cost/deemed cost of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, including those held 
under finance leases to their residual value. These charges are commenced from the dates the 
assets are available for their intended use and are spread over their estimated useful economic 
lives or, in the case of leased assets, over the lease period, if shorter. The estimated useful lives of 
assets and residual values are reviewed regularly and, when necessary, revised. No further 
charge is provided in respect of assets that are fully written down but are still in use.

 Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost/deemed cost, less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment. Cost includes all direct costs and expenditures incurred to bring the asset to its 
working condition and location for its intended use. Trial run expenses (net of revenue) are 
capitalised. Borrowing costs incurred during the period of construction is capitalised as part of 
cost of qualifying asset. The gain or loss arising on disposal of an item of property, plant and 
equipment is determined as the difference between sale proceeds and carrying value of such 
item, and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

 An item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and its cost can be 
measured reliably. This recognition principle is applied to costs incurred initially to acquire an 
item of property, plant and equipment and also to costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace 
part of, or service it. All other repair and maintenance costs, including regular servicing, are 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. When a replacement occurs, the 
carrying value of the replaced part is derecognised. Where an item of property, plant and 
equipment comprises major components having different useful lives, these  components are 
accounted for as separate items.

2.05 Intangible assets

2.04 Property, plant and equipment
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 Others     5 years or less

 Motor Cycles   10 years

2.07 Impairment

 Other than Factory Building without RCC frame structure     30 years

 Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease 
liabilities include the net present value of the following lease payments:

 Class of Asset   Estimated Useful Life

 Vehicles 

 Fences, Walls, etc.   5 years

 Other Heavy Vehicles   8 years

2.08 Leases

 The Company as lessee

• Variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the 

 From 1 April 2019, leases are recognized as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at 
the date at which the leased asset is available for use by the company. Contracts may contain 
both lease and non- lease components. The Company allocates consideration in the contract to 
the lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices.

 Factory Building    30 years

 Other Machinery   15 years or less

 Other than Factory Building with RCC frame structure     60 years

 Freehold building 

 Plant and Machinery

 Office Equipment

 Plant and Machinery used in manufacture of Synthetic Iron Oxide 
Pigments – Reactors    20 years

 Computers and data processing units   3 years

 Furniture and Fixtures   10 years

 Intangible Assets   10 years

 At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying values of its property, plant and 
equipment and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that the carrying 
value of those assets may not be recoverable through continuing use. If any such indication 
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is reviewed in order to determine the extent of 
impairment loss, if any.

 Effective April 1, 2019, the Company has applied Ind AS 116 which establishes a comprehensive 
framework for determining whether, how much and when lease is to be recognised. Ind AS 116 
replaces Ind AS 17 Leases. The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 using the modified 
retrospective approach. The adoption of the new standard did not have a material impact on the 
Company.

• Fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives
  receivable
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• The exercise price of a purchase option if the company is reasonable certain to exercise that
  option, and

 Lease income from operating leases where the company is a lessor is recognised in income on 
straight – line basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating 
lease are added to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognised as expense over 
the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The respective leased assets are included in 
the balance sheet based on their nature. The company did not need to make any adjustments to 
the accounting for assets held as lessor as a result of the adopting of new leasing standard.

index or rate as at the commencement date

• Amounts expected to be payable by the company under residual value guarantees

• Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the company
  exercising that option.

 Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

• The amount of initial measurement of the lease liability

• Any initial direct costs, and

• Restoration costs

 Payments associated with short-term lease equipment and all leases of low-value assets are 
recognized on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases 
with a lease term of 12 months or less.

  The Company as lessor

• Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
  received

 2.09 Financial Instruments

 Financial assets

 Cash and bank balances

 Cash and bank balances consist of:

(i) Cash and cash equivalents - which includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and 
other short term deposits which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject 

 The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial 
instrument and of allocating interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effective 
interest rate is the rate that  exactly discounts future cash receipts or payments through the 
expected life of the financial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

 Effective interest method

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to 
the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured 
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to  the  acquisition  or  issue  of 
financial  assets  and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at 
fair value through profit and loss)  are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on 
initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability. The transaction costs directly attributable 
to the acquisition of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss 
are immediately recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
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to an insignificant risk of change in value and have maturities of less than one year from the 
reporting date. These balances with banks are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

(ii) Other bank balances - which includes balances and deposits with banks that are restricted for 
withdrawal and usage.

           Financial assets at amortised cost

 Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held 
within a business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual 
cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash 
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

 Loss allowance for expected credit losses is recognised for financial assets measured at 
amortised cost and fair value through other comprehensive income. The Company recognises life 
time expected credit losses for all trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction.

 Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if such 
financial assets are held within a business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order 
to collect contractual cash flows or to sell such financial assets and the contractual terms of the 
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

 The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows 
from the asset expire, or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all risks and rewards of 
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor retains 
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred 
asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the assets and an associated liability for 
amounts it may have to pay.

 The Company in respect of equity investments (other than in subsidiaries, associates and joint 
ventures) which are not held for trading has made an irrevocable election to present in other 
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value of such equity instruments. Such 
an election is made by the Company on an instrument by instrument basis at the time of initial 
recognition of such equity investments. These investments are held for medium or long term 
strategic purpose.

 Impairment of financial assets

 De-recognition of financial assets

 Financial assets measured at fair value

 The Company has chosen to designate these investments in equity instruments as fair value 
through other comprehensive income as the management believe this provides a more 
meaningful presentation for medium or long term strategic investments, than reflecting changes 
in fair value immediately in the statement of profit & loss. Financial asset not measured at 
amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income is carried at fair value 
through the statement of profit and loss.

 For financial assets whose credit risk has not significantly increased since initial recognition, loss 
allowance equal to twelve months expected credit losses is recognised. Loss allowance equal to 
the lifetime expected credit losses is recognised if the credit risk of the financial asset has 
significantly increased since initial recognition.
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 If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred 
financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a 
borrowing for the proceeds received.

 Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the 
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability 
and an equity instrument.

 Equity instruments

 Payments to defined contribution plans are charged as an expense as they fall due. Payments 
made to  state managed retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as payments to defined 
contribution schemes where the Company’s obligations under the schemes are equivalent to 
those arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme.

 Defined contribution plans

 Defined benefit plans

 Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method where the time 
value of money is significant. Interest bearing bank loans, overdrafts and issued debt are initially 
measured at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest rate method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the 
settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in the 
statement of profit and loss.

 Financial liabilities and equity instruments
 Classification as debt or equity 

 Financial Liabilities

 De-recognition of financial liabilities

2.10 Employee benefits

 An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the 
Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceed 
received, net of direct issue costs.

 Compensated absences

 The Company de-recognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations 
are discharged, cancelled or they expire.

 Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of 
the period in which the employee renders the related service are recognised based on actuarial 

 For defined benefit retirement schemes the cost of providing benefits is determined using the 
Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuarial valuation being carried out at each year-end balance 
sheet date.Re- measurement gains and losses of the net defined benefit liability/ (asset) are 
recognised immediately in other comprehensive income. The service cost and net interest on the 
net defined benefit liability/ (asset) is recognised as an expense within employment costs. Past 
service cost is recognised as an expense when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs or 
when any related restructuring costs or termination benefits are recognised, whichever is earlier. 
The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value of 
the defined-benefit obligation as reduced by the fair value of plan assets.
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2.11 Inventories

2.12 Provisions

(a) by an established pattern of past practice, published policies or a sufficiently specific current 
statement, the entity has indicated to other parties that it will accept certain responsibilities and;

2.15 Income taxes

 Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is ascertained on a 
weighted average basis. Costs comprise direct materials and, where applicable, direct labour 
costs and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present 
location and condition. Net realisable value is the price at which the inventories can be realised 
in the normal course of business after allowing for the cost of conversion from their existing state 
to a finished condition and for the cost of marketing, selling and distribution.

 Provisions are recognised in the balance sheet when the Company has a present obligation 
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, which is expected to result in an outflow of 
resources embodying economic benefits which can be reliably estimated. Each provision is 
based on the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the 
balance sheet date. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are measured on a 
discounted basis.

 A provision for onerous contracts is recognised when the expected benefits to be derived by the 
Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under 
the contract. The provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of 
terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a 
provision is established, the Company recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated 
with that contract.

(b) as a result, the entity has created a valid expectation on the part of those other parties that it will 
discharge such responsibilities.

2.13 Onerous contracts

 Government grants related to expenditure on property, plant and equipment are credited to the 
statement of profit and loss over the useful lives of qualifying assets or other systematic basis 
representative of the pattern of fulfilment of obligations associated with the grant received. Total 
grants received less amounts credited to the statement of profit and loss at the balance sheet 
date are included in the balance sheet as deferred income.

valuation at the present value of the obligation as on the reporting date.

 Provisions are made to cover slow moving and obsolete items based on historical experience of 
utilisation on a product

 Stores and spare parts are carried at lower of cost and net realisable value.

 Constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from an entity’s actions where:

2.14 Government grants

 Tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. The tax currently payable is based 
on taxable profit for the period. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the statement of 
profit and loss because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in 
other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s 
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liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

 Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying 
values of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used 
in the computation of taxable profit and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. 
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. In contrast, 
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits 
will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

 The carrying value of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and 
reduced to  the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available 
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

 Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability 
is settled or the asset is realised based on the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or 
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax 
liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which 
the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying value of 
its assets and liabilities.

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset to the extent that they relate to taxes levied by the 
same tax authority and there are legally enforceable rights to set off current tax assets and 
current tax liabilities within that jurisdiction.

 Current and deferred tax are recognised as an expense or income in the statement of profit and 
loss, except when they relate to items credited or debited either in other comprehensive income or 
directly in equity, in which case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or 
directly in equity.

 Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in 
India, which is likely to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against 
future income tax liability. MAT is recognised as deferred tax assets in the balance sheet when the 
asset can be measured reliably and it is probable that the future economic benefit associated 
with the asset will be realised.

2.16 Revenue

 The company has applied the new revenue Accounting Standard Ind AS 115-Revenue from 
Contract with customer for the annual reporting period commencing April 1, 2018 using the full 
retrospective approach. The company has to change its Accounting Policy. The impact of 
adoption has been assessed to be immaterial.

 The company recognise revenue from transfer of goods and services at point of time. The 
company manufacture and sell a range of paints products in domestic market. Sale are 
recognised when the control of products are transferred, being when the product are delivered to 
customer and the consideration to  which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for goods 
or services.

 Revenue from these sales is recognised based on the price specified in the contract, net of the 
estimated volume discounts. Accumulated experience is used to estimate and provide for the 
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 Basic earnings per share has been computed by dividing profit or loss for the year by the 
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year. Partly paid up shares are 

 Borrowings costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying 
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their 
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are 
substantially ready for the intended use or sale.

 Interest income from financial assets is recognised when it is probable that the economic 
benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest 
income is accrued on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and at 
the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future 
cash receipts through the expected life of the  financial assets to that assets net carrying amount 
on initial recognition.

2.17 Foreign currency transactions and translations

2.19  Earning per share

 Investment income earned on temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their 
expenditure on qualifying assets is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

 In preparing the financial statements, transactions in currencies other than the Company’s 
functional currency are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of the 
transaction.

 At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are re-
translated at the rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at 
fair value that are  denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at the rates prevailing on 
the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of 
historical cost in a foreign currency are not translated.

2.18 Borrowing costs

discounts, and revenue is only recognised to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant 
reversal will not occur. No element of financing is deemed present as the sales are made with a 
credit term of 30/60 days, which is consistent with market practice.

 Revenue from providing services is recognised in the accounting period in which the services are 
rendered. For fixed-price contracts, revenue is recognised based on the actual service provided to 
the end of the reporting period as a proportion of the total services to be provided because the 
customer receives and uses the benefits simultaneously.

 The company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the 
promised goods or services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a 
consequence, the group does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money.

 Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable net of discount, 
taking in to account contractually defined terms and excluding taxes and duties collected on 
behalf of the government.

 Dividend and Interest income

 Dividend income from investment is recognised when the company’s right to receive dividend is 
established.
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2.22 Recent Accounting Pronouncements

included as fully paid equivalents according to the fraction paid up.

 L ong-Term Interest in Associates and Joint Ventures – Amendments to Ind AS 28 – Not applicable 
to the Company.

 Other Amendments:

 The Company identifies primary segments based on the dominant source, nature of risks and 
returns, internal organisation, management structure and the internal performance reporting 
systems. The accounting policies adopted for the segment reporting are in line with the 
accounting policies of the Company.

 A ppendix C to Ind AS 12, Income Taxes (Uncertainty over income tax treatments) – Not applicable 
to the Company since no such transactions during the year.

 Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/ (loss) before extraordinary 
items and tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or 
accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and 
financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the available information.

 Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2019 and the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second 
Amendment Rules, 2019 containing the following new amendments to Ind AS which the 
Company has applied as they are effective for annual periods beginning April 1, 2019.

 I nd AS 116 – As per the management assessment, there is no significant impact of this standard 
on the Company and hence no impact has been taken in the financial statements of the 
Company.

 Diluted earnings per share has been computed using the weighted average number of shares 
and dilutive potential shares except where the result would be anti-dilutive.

2.20 Cash Flow Statement

2.21 Segment Reporting

 P repayment Features with Negative Compensation – Amendments to Ind AS 109 – Not 
applicable to the Company since no such transactions during the year.

 - Amendments to Ind AS 12, Income Taxes – This amendment related to dividend on financials 
instruments classified as equity.

 - Amendments to Ind AS 23, Borrowings Costs – Not applicable, since Company does not have 
any  borrowings.

 - Amendments to Ind AS 11, Joint Arrangement – Not applicable to the Company since no 
such transactions during the year.

 - Amendments to Ind AS 103, Business Combinations – Not applicable to the Company since 
no such transactions during the year.
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3 Property, Plant
 

And
 

Equipments
 

Amount in Rs.
 

lacs
 

  

As at March 31, 2020

 Buildings

 

Owned Plant 

and Machinery

 
Furniture 

and fixtures

 
Office 

Equipments

 Vehicle

 

Total 

Tangible Assets

 

Cost as at April 1, 2019

 

593.94

 

1,075.32

 

16.85

 

66.07

 

48.85

 

1,801.03

 

Additions

 

-

 

29.00

 

3.36

 

10.46

 

-

 

42.82

 

Disposals/discard

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

Cost as at March 31, 2020

 

593.94

 

1,104.32

 

20.21

 

76.53

 

48.85

 

1,843.85

 

Accumulated Depreciation as at April 1, 2019

 

85.84

 

330.57

 

5.68

 

43.62

 

26.39

 

492.10

 

Charge for the year

 

21.42

 

84.11

 

1.84

 

14.15

 

6.16

 

127.68

 

Disposals/discard

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

Accumulated Depreciation as at March 31, 2020

 

107.26

 

414.68

 

7.52

 

57.77

 

32.55

 

619.78

 

Net book value as at March 31, 2020

 

486.68

 

689.64

 

12.69

 

18.76

 

16.30

 

1,224.07

 

 

  

As at March 31, 2019

 

Buildings

 

Owned Plant 

and Machinery

 

Furniture 

and fixtures

 

Office 

Equipments

 

Vehicle

 

Total 

Tangible Assets

 

Cost as at April 1, 2018

 

593.94

 

1,062.85

 

15.66

 

55.72

 

48.85

 

1,777.02

 

Additions

 

-

 

12.47

 

1.19

 

10.35

 

-

 

24.01

 

Disposals/discard

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

Cost as at March 31, 2019

 

593.94

 

1,075.32

 

16.85

 

66.07

 

48.85

 

1,801.03

 

Accumulated Depreciation as at April 1, 2018

 

64.39

 

247.94

 

3.92

 

30.58

 

19.61

 

366.44

 

Charge for the year

 

21.45

 

82.63

 

1.76

 

13.04

 

6.78

 

125.66

 

Disposals/discard

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

Accumulated Depreciation as at March 31, 2019

 

85.84

 

330.57

 

5.68

 

43.62

 

26.39

 

492.10

 

 

Net book value as at March 31, 2019

 

      

508.10

 

744.75

 

11.17

 

22.45

 

22.46

 

1,308.93

 

 

4

 

Intangible

 

assets

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

4.a. Depreciation and amortisation for the year

 

 

 

March 31,

 

2020

 

March 31, 2019

 

Cost as at beginning of the year 

Additions

 

Disposals

 

118.81

 

27.01

 

-

 

118.81

 

-

 

-

 

Cost as at end of the year

 

145.82

 

118.81

 

Accumulated Amortisation at beginning

 

of the year

 

52.48

 

39.36

 

Charge for the year

 

15.37

 

13.12

 

Disposals

 

-

 

-

 

Accumulated Amortisation at end of the year

 

67.85

 

52.48

 

Net book value as at end of the year

 

77.97

 

66.33

 

 

 

For the 

year

 

ended

 

March 31, 2020

 

For the 

year

 

ended

 

March 31, 2019

 

Depreciation -

 

Property, Plant and Equipment

 

127.68

 

125.66

 

Amortisation -

 

Intangible

 

15.37

 

13.12

 

Total

 

143.05

 

138.78

 

 



41

The Tata Pigments Limited
Notes to the financial statements    
       Amount in  Rs. lacs

       As at March 31, 2020   As at March 31, 2019
      

5   Inventories 

 (a) Raw materials (At lower of cost and net realisable value) 163.61 191.45

 (b) Semi Finished (At lower of cost and net realisable value) 209.42 43.40

 Classified as:

      3,026.59 2,492.85

 (c) Finished goods (At lower of cost and net realisable value) 586.48 499.82

 (d) Stock in trade (At lower of cost and net realisable value) 153.82 113.74

 Tata Liquid Plan "A" Daily Dividend  - 2,492.85

 Non current*    -     -   

 Axis Liquid Fund   202.78 -

 Tata Overnight Fund   1,501.41  -

 Non current   - -

 Financial assets measured at Fair value through other comprehensive income  (FVTOCI)

                

 * Amount lower than the rounding off norm adopted by the company.               

 (e) Stores and spares (At or lower than cost)  206.20 209.62

       -     -   

 Current     -     -  

 Financial assets carried  at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)               

 Aditya Birla Sun Life Liquid Fund  102.35 -

 Classified as:               

6   Investment                

 LIC MF Liquid Fund  207.73 -

 Unquoted Equity Investment   -     -   

 (March 31, 2019 : 10,000 Equity shares of 
 Rs. 10 each in Nicco Jubilee Park Limited fully paid up)*  -     -   

 SBI Liquid Fund   103.85 -

      1,319.53 1,058.03

 Franklin Templeton Mutual Fund  201.87 -

 Baroda Liquid Fund  201.67 -

      3,026.59 2,492.85

 Tata Liquid Fund   100.68 -

 L & T Mutual Fund  102.43 -

 Unquoted Mutual Fund   

 DSP Mutual Fund  100.65 -

 Nippon India Liquid Fund (Formerly Reliance Liquid Fund) 201.17 -

 Current     3,026.59  2,492.85
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 Unsecured, considered good   20.00  309.65 10.83 19.99

        20.00   309.65 10.83 19.99

 Doubtful    -      -    -     -   

 Less: Loss allowance  -      -    -     -   

 Classification of other financial assets:

       20.00   309.65 10.83 19.99

 Secured, considered good   -      -    -     -   

       20.00  309.65 10.83 19.99

 Trade receivables   38.36  733.08 11.49 1,180.98

 Two months overdue  -  127.04 - 345.89

 Less:Loss allowance   -  (48.85)  - (26.92)

7 Trade Receivables  Non current   Current Non current  Current

 Less:Loss allowance   -  (48.85)  - (26.92)

 Total trade receivables   201.20   1,849.57 109.02 2,001.67

 Break-up of security details   Non current    Current  Non current   Current 

 Total     201.20  1,898.42 109.02 2,028.59

 Ageing of trade receivables is as below:

 Amounts not yet due  -  840.22 - 987.09

The Tata Pigments Limited
Notes to the financial statements    Amount in  Rs. lacs  
   
       As at March 31, 2020      As at March 31, 2019   

 Receivables from related parties (refer note 33)  162.84  1,165.34 97.53 847.61

 Secured, considered good  -  10.68 - 11.25

 Age of Receivable      

 Unsecured, considered good  201.20  1,838.89 109.02 1,990.42

 Doubtful     -  48.85   - 26.92

 Total trade receivables   201.20   1,849.57 109.02 2,001.67

               

 One month overdue  -  494.56 - 209.25

       201.20   1,898.42 109.02 2,028.59

Information about major customers              

The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the fact that the customer base of the Company is large and unrelated.

8   Other financial Assets   Non current   Current Non current  Current

 Three months overdue  -  120.18 - 188.79

 Between three to six months overdue  -  174.83 - 89.13

 Greater than six months overdue   201.20    141.59   109.02  208.44

Before accepting any new customer, the Company uses their own credit scoring system to access the potential customers credit  quality and  
define credit limit by customer. Limits and scoring attributes to customer are reviewed twice a year. Trade receivable balance as at  March 31,  
2020 of Rs.1052.54 lacs (as at March 31, 2019 of Rs.684.38 lacs) is due from Tata Steel Limited; and Rs.191.80 lacs (as at March 31, 2019 of 
Rs.155.82 lacs) is due from TRF Limited, both being the company's largest customers respectively. There are no  other  customers  who 
represents more than 10% of the total balance of trade receivables.

        As at March 31, 2020     As at March 31, 2019   

 (a) Security deposits  -  13.86 - 7.70

 (b) Interest accrued on deposits  -  8.71 0.33 12.29

 (c) Bank deposit with original maturity 
  more than twelve months  20.00  - 10.50  -

 (d) Unbilled Revenue   -  287.08   -   -
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       As at March 31, 2020      As at March 31, 2019   

9. Other Non financial Assets  Non current   Current Non current  Current

The Tata Pigments Limited
Notes to the financial statements    Amount in  Rs. lacs  

      191.24  341.12 192.75 251.96

 Classification of other non financial assets:

 Secured, considered good  -  - - -

 Provision for Doubtful Advances   -   -  -  -

                       

       As at March 31, 2020                             As at March 31, 2019   

10  Cash and Bank balances  Non current   Current Non current  Current

 (b) Advance with public bodies  171.46  211.99 170.46 168.57

 (a) Unrestricted Balances with banks 

  (i) In Current Account  -  64.87 - 383.18

  (ii) In Deposit with original maturity of 
  less than three month  -  - - 42.00

 Unsecured, considered good  191.24  341.12 192.75 251.96

       191.24   341.12 192.75 251.96

 (c) Advance to related parties  -  17.87 - 1.22

 (b) Cash in hand    -   0.34   - 0.08

 (d) Other advances and prepayments  19.78   95.03  22.29  82.17

       -  65.21 - 425.26

 (a) Capital advances  -  16.23 - -     

 (c) Unrestricted Balances with banks

  (i) In Deposit with original maturity of 
  more than three months and upto twelve months -  490.25 - 470.00

      1.02  501.97 - 470.86

  (i)In Deposit Account  1.02  11.72 - 0.86

 (d) Earmarked Balance with scheduled banks
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 Tata Steel Limited - Holding Company and its nominees 75,000 75,000

The Tata Pigments Limited
Notes to the financial statements
        Amount in  Rs. lacs 

 Subscribed and fully paid up:             

 75,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each   75.00   75.00 

 Equity Shares :             

 The company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.100 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for 
one vote per share held. The dividend, if any, proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the 
shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the 
equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company, in proportion to their shareholding.

 (March 31, 2019: 75,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each)             

 100,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each  100.00 100.00

      100.00 100.00 

       75.00   75.00 

11 Equity Share Capital   As at March 31, 2020    As at March 31, 2019  

 Details of shares held by holding company or its subsidiaries             

 Percentage   100% 100%

 (March 31, 2019: 100,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each)  

 Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 
 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company             

 Issued:

 75,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each   75.00   75.00 

 Authorised:

       75.00   75.00 

 No. of Shares   75,000 75,000

 Equity Shares :             

 (March 31, 2019: 75,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each)             

 Tata Steel Limited - Holding Company and its nominees             

 Percentage             

 No. of Shares   100% 100%

 Rights and restrictions attached to shares             

 Equity shares             
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  (a)  Property, Plant and   135.08 (19.35) 154.43 (2.16) 156.59
  equipment and intangible assets

        March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

 Deferred tax liabilities                 

The Tata Pigments Limited
Notes to the financial statements    Amount in  Rs. lacs

   

 Tax effects of amount which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income:   

      138.61 (15.82) 154.43 (2.16) 156.59

 (c)  Leave Salary 52.67 (2.11) 54.78 (2.88) 51.90 

 Net Deferred Tax Liability (Net)  (3.70) (62.02) 58.32 (22.17) 80.49 

                  

12 Deferred tax liabilities (Net) March 31, 2020 to the Statement  March 31, 2019 to the Statement March 31,  2018

 Deferred tax assets

      As at   Charge/(Credit)  As at   Charge/(Credit)  As at  

 Other       - 4.50

      of Profit and Loss  of Profit and Loss

 Impact of change in statutory tax rate    (2.97) -

  to the accounting profit as follows                 

 Tax rate of 25.17% (Year Ended March 31,2019 - 27.82%)   178.98 190.77

 (b) Others (Provision for warranty,  33.24 3.26 29.98 (5.78) 24.20 
  Inventory  &  doubtful debts)

      142.31 46.20 96.11 (20.01) 76.10 

 (b) Change in fair value of Investment 3.53 3.53 - - -

 Total tax expenses as per Statement of Profit and Loss   179.51 197.90

 Loss on sale of capital assets    - -

 Dividend from current investments    - (2.58)

     

 (a)  Others - 43B item 56.40 45.05 11.35 (11.35) -

         As at   As at 

 Profit from continuing operations before income tax expenses   711.13 685.71

 Adjustment for current tax of prior periods    (0.13) -

12.1 The Income tax expenses for the year can be  reconciled                 

 Corporate Social Resposibility expenses    3.63 5.21
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       As at March 31, 2020      As at March 31, 2019   

The Tata Pigments Limited
Notes to the financial statements     Amount in  Rs. lacs  

13 Trade payables   Non current   Current Non current  Current

 (b) Creditors for supplies and services -    55.67  1,810.16 - 1,702.94 
  other than Micro & Small Enterprises

  (i)  Security deposits   129.34  - 131.84 -

  (ii)  Provisions and Other credit balances  -   98.64  -  86.61 

       129.34  98.64 131.84 86.61

15 Retirement benefit obligations

 (a) Provision for employee benefits

  (1) Post-employment Defined Benefits           

   i)  Retiring Gratuity  52.12  - 16.79 -

  (a)  Creditors for other liabilities

 (c)  Creditors for accrued wages and salaries  -  319.16 - 274.40 

14  Other financial liabilities     

   ii)  Pension Obligation  362.88  23.28 323.00 22.15

   iii)  Post retirement medical benefits 42.01  4.76 40.04 4.74

   i)  Provision for employees    2.77  2.21 4.98 2.21
    separation scheme

  (2)  Other Employee Benefits           

   iv)  Other post retirement benefits (Leave) 185.55  23.70 177.38 19.50

      55.67  2,219.65 - 2,006.73

 (a)  Creditors for supplies and services -    -  90.33 - 29.39
  Dues to Micro & Small Enterprises (Refer note no.-31)

       -  189.80 - 170.14

16  Other non financial liabilities

   ii)  Other long term employee benefits  -  45.94  -  5.89 

 (a) Advances received from customers   -  112.61 - 61.98

 (b) Employee recoveries and employer contributions  -  11.68 - 6.12

 (c) Statutory Dues (GST, Excise duty,    -  65.51 - 102.04
  service tax, sales tax, TDS etc.)

       645.33  99.89 562.19 54.49
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      March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

  Sale of Traded goods  1,913.29 1,850.12

  Others   40.14 45.44

 (b) Dividend income  

      For the year ended   For the year ended 

 (a) Sale of Goods  

 (a) Interest received on sundry advances, deposits, 
  customers’ balances etc.       38.61   37.90

19 Cost of Materials Consumed       

 (i) Opening Stock  191.45 116.10

      2,629.63 3,004.03

The Tata Pigments Limited
Notes to the financial statements   Amount in  Rs. lacs

17 Revenue from Operations       

  Sale of Products  6,055.21 6,936.19

 (b) Sale of Services  4,222.00 2,738.36
 (c) Other operating revenue  

      12,230.64 11,570.11

18 Other Income       

  Dividend from current investments  - 9.26
 (c) Short term Gain  150.11 68.02
 (d) Change in fair value of Investment  14.03 66.43
 (e) Gain on foreign currency transactions  (0.82) (2.70)
 (f) Liability no longer required  43.84 15.41
       245.77  194.32

 Raw Material Consumed 

 (ii) Add: Purchases   2,438.18  2,887.93

       2,466.02  2,812.58

 Raw Material Consumed   2,466.02  2,812.58
       2,466.02  2,812.58

20 Purchase of Traded Goods       
 (a) Oxide of Iron  327.53 330.51
 (b) Decorative Products  1,223.64 1,020.46

 (iii) Less: Closing Stock   163.61  191.45

       1,551.17  1,350.97

 Stock at the beginning of the year       
21 Changes in Inventories of finished goods, stock in trade and Semi Finished       

 (a) Finished goods  499.82 533.29
 (b) Semi Finished  43.40 183.21

 Stock at the end of the year       

 (c) Stock in trade  113.74 108.83

 (a) Finished goods  586.48 499.82
 (b) Semi Finished  209.42 43.40

       656.96  825.33

 Changes in Inventories   (292.76) 168.37

 (c) Stock in trade  153.82 113.74
       949.72  656.96
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      For the year ended   For the year ended 

 (a) Salaries and wages, including bonus  1,071.79 1,022.44

The Tata Pigments Limited
Notes to the financial statements   Amount in  Rs. lacs

      March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

22 Employee benefits expense:

 (b) Contribution to provident and other funds  145.25 110.76

 (c) Staff welfare expenses   146.06  167.96

       1,363.10  1,301.16

23 Finance Costs          

 (a) Interest expense  8.37 9.12  

       8.37  9.12

 (a) Consumption of stores and spares  391.71 463.21

24 Other Expenses          

 (b) Repairs to buildings  17.52 14.32

 (c) Repairs to machinery  108.58 90.52

 (d) Fuel oil consumed  339.11 372.93

 (e) Purchase of power  262.65 268.24

 (f) Conversion Charges  317.52 327.19

   (i)   Auditors remuneration and out-of-pocket   -     -   
   expenses (Refer Note 2)

 (k) Insurance charges  5.83 8.72

 (l) Commission and Discounts  110.69 125.27

    As Auditors    1.18   1.18 

 (o) Other expenses  546.81 476.97

  (ii) Legal and other professional costs  72.33 76.17

 (h) Rent    14.19 21.02

 (g) Freight and handling charges  566.32 621.58

  (iii) Advertisement, promotion and selling expenses 149.10 97.40

   For Other services    0.40   0.40 

Note 2  Auditor Remuneration and out of pocket expenses excludes GST of Rs 0.45 lacs for the year ended March 
31,2020 ( Rs 0.33 lacs for the year ended March 31,2019)

 (m) Bad debts   2.20 33.99

  (v) Other general expenses  258.31 232.49

 (j) Rates and taxes  56.50 60.46

Note 1 Other general expenses includes expenditure charged to Statement of Profit and Loss in respect of Corporate 
Social Responsibility (CSR) activities - Refer Note 26

 (i) Brand Equity  30.18 28.91

 (n) Provision for doubtful debts and advances  21.93 1.40

      2,791.74 2,914.73

    Auditors out-of-pocket expenses     0.90 0.25

  (iv) Travelling expenses  64.59 69.08
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Notes to the financial Statements 

The Tata Pigments Limited

25 Employee Benefits

25.01Defined Contribution Plans:

 Total      59.34  56.37

 The company sponsors funded defined benefit plans for qualify employees. The defined benefit plans are administered 
by a separate fund that is legally separate from the entity. The board of the fund is required by law and by the articles of 
association to act in the interest of the fund and relevant state holder in the scheme. The board of the fund is responsible 
for the investment policy with regard to the assets of the fund.

 The company has recognised, in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2020, an amount 
of Rs. 59.34 lacs (March 31,2019 Rs. 56.37 lacs) as expenses under the following defined contribution plan.

 Employee Pension Scheme   23.73  23.13

 The Company operates following post-employment / other long term defined benefits plans:

 The company participates in a number of defined contribution plans on behalf of relevant personnel. Any expense 
recognised in relation to these schemes represents the value of contributions payable during the period by them at 
rates specified by the rules of those plans. The only amounts included in the balance sheet are those relating to the 
prior month's contributions that were not due to be paid until after the end of the reporting period.

        Amount in Rs. lacs

 Defined Contribution expenses recognised in the statement of Profit and loss

 Unfunded

 Superannuation fund:

ii. Provident Fund: Provident fund benefits provided under plans wherein contributions are made to an irrevocable trust 
set up by the Company to manage the investments and distribute the amounts entitled to employees are treated as a 
defined benefit plan as the Company is obligated to provide the members a rate of return which should, at the minimum, 
meet the interest rate declared by Government administered  provident fund. The contributions made by the Company 
and the shortfall of interest, if any, are recognised as an expense in profit and loss under employee benefits expense.

i. Gratuity: The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employee. 
The plan provides for a lump sum payment to vested employee at retirement, death while in employment or on 
termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 to 30 day’s salary payable for each completed years of 
service. Vesting occurs upon completion of 5 years of service. The company account for the liability for gratuity benefit 
payable in the future based on actuarial valuation.

 Superannuation Fund   34.22  32.32

 Funded

       March 31, 2020                             March 31, 2019

 Particulars      
       For the Year ended         For the Year ended

i. Post-Retirement Medical Benefit (PRMB)- Ex MD – Under the unfunded scheme the Managing Director receive 
medical benefit. The company account for the liabilities post-retirement medical scheme based on actuarial valuation.

 The company has a superannuation plan. Employees who are members of the defined benefit superannuation plan are 
entitled to benefits depending on the years of service and salary drawn. Separate irrevocable trusts are maintained for 
employees covered and entitled to benefits. The company contributes up to 15% or 150,000, whichever is lower, of the 
eligible employee’s salary to the trust every year. Such contributions are recognized as an expense when incurred. The 
company has no further obligation beyond this contribution. 

 EDLI (Employee Deposit Link Insurance)  1.39  0.92

25.02 Defined benefit plans:

 In accordance with an actuarial valuation of provident fund liabilities based on guidance issued by Actuarial Society of 
India and based on the assumptions as mentioned below, there is deficiency in the interest cost as the present value of 
the expected future earnings of the fund is lesser than the expected amount to be credited to the individual members 
based on the expected guaranteed rate of interest of Government administered provident fund.
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 The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. 
As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

 The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of 
plan participants both during and after their employment and increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will 
increase the plan liability.

 The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate determined by reference to 
government/high quality bond yields. If the return on plan asset is below the rate, it will create a plan deficit.

b) Interest risk

 The following table sets out the amounts recognised in the financial statements in respect of retiring gratuity plan.

 The Company is exposed to number of risk the most significant of which are detailed below:

d) Salary risk

iii. Other Retirement Benefit (ORB)- Ex-MD Pension – Other benefits provide under Unfunded Scheme include pension 
payable to Managing Directors of the company on their retirement and obligation is determined based on actuarial 
valuation.

 A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability however, this will be partially offset by an increase in 
the return on the plan's debt investment.

c) Longevity Risk

ii. Compensated absence: Compensated absence which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of 
the period in which the employee renders the related services are recognised based on actuarial valuation at the 
present value of the obligations as on the reporting date.

a) Investment risk

 Details of the Retiring Gratuity Benefit are as follows:
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Amount in Rs. Lacs 

Description Year 

ended 

March 

31,2020 

Year 

ended 

March 

31,2019 

 

A. Reconciliation of Opening and Closing Balances of Present Value of 

Obligation 

a. DBO at beginning of the year 

b. Current Service Cost 

c. Interest cost 

d. Past Service Cost 

e. Acquisitions (credit)/ cost 
f. Actuarial loss/ (gain) Experience 
g. Actuarial loss/ ( gain) Demographic assumption 

h. Actuarial loss/ ( gain) Financial assumption 

i. Benefits paid 

j. DBO at end of the year 

   

  
428.64

 
 393.48 

 23.87 22.75 
 29.87 27.64 
 - - 
 - - 
 16.26 34.56 
 - - 
 29.57 - 
 (60.73) (49.79) 

 467.48 428.64 

B. Change in Fair value of Assets    
 

a. Fair Value of plan assets at beginning of the year  

b. Acquisitions Adjustment 

c. Interest income on plan assets 

411.85 

- 

29.24 

406.42 

- 

28.61 
 d. Return on plan assets greater/ (lesser) than discount rate 18.21 26.61 
 e. Contribution by the employer 16.79 - 
 f. Benefits Paid (60.73) (49.79) 
 g. Fair Value of plan assets at end of the year  415.37 411.85 

C. Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets and present value of defined 
benefit obligation  
a. Fair Value of plan assets at the end of the year  

b. Present Value of the Obligation at the end of the year  
c. Amount recognised in the balance sheet (Retirement benefit 
obligation – Non Current) 

   

  
415.37

 
 411.85 

 (467.48) (428.64) 

 (52.11) (16.79) 



25.03 Investment Details of Plan Assets (Gratuity)

                                   %age invested

 Particulars    Year ended   Year ended

       March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

a. GOI and State Government Securities   55%  55%

b. Public Sector and Private Sector Unit Bonds   32%  32%

c. Cash including Special Deposit Schemes   9%  9%

d. Property     0%  0%

e. Equity Shares of listed companies   4%  4%

f.    Others (including assets under schemes of insurance)   0%  0%

 Discount rate (per annum) (%)   6.5%  7.5%

25.04  Assumptions: The key assumption used in accounting for gratuity is as below : 

 Remaining average working Life (in Years)   7 years  7 years

 Rate of escalation in salary : Officer / Executive ( % )   7%  7%

 Method Used    Projected unit   Projected unit 
       credit method  credit method

 Rate of escalation in salary : Unionized ( % )   7%  7%
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 d.   Actuarial loss/ (gain) due to DBO experience   16.26 34.56

 f.   Return on plan assets (greater)/ less than discount rate  (18.21) (26.61)

D2 Expenses recognised in the statement of other Comprehensive income

 b.  Net interest on net defined benefit liability/ (assets)   0.63 (0.97)

       March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

D1.   Expenses recognised 

 c.  Past Service Cost   - -

       

 g.   Expense recognised in the statement of profit and    52.12 29.73
  loss during the year (a+b+c+d+e+f)

 a.  Current Service Cost   23.87 22.75

 Description    Year ended   Year ended

                                   Amount in  Rs. lacs 

 e.   Actuarial loss/ (gain) due to DBO assumption changes  29.57 -

 As at March 31, 2019 

 Salary escalation Increase by 1%, decrease by 1%     Increase by Rs.  29.90 lacs/ Decrease
       by Rs. 27.89 lacs

 Assumption  Changes in assumption  Impact on Scheme Liabilities

 Assumption    Change in Assumption  Impact on Scheme Liabilities

 Discount Rate  Increase by 1%, decrease by 1%       Decrease by Rs.  27.52 lacs/ 
       Increase by  Rs. 30.03 lacs

 As at March 31, 2020 

The table below outlines the effect on obligation in the event of a decrease/increase in the assumption used. 

 Discount Rate  Increase by 1%, decrease by 1%        Decrease by Rs.  29.57 lacs Increase
       by  Rs. 34.04 lacs

 Salary escalation Increase by 1%, decrease by 1%       I ncrease by Rs. 33.55 lacs/ Decrease 
       by Rs. 29.71 lacs



The above sensitivities may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the 
change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Details of unfunded defined benefits are as follows:                                          
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The following table set out the amount recognised in financial statement in respect of providend fund benefit 

plan.  

Amount in Rs. Lacs  

Particulars  For the year ended March 

31,2020  

For the year ended March 

31,2019  

Projected benefit obligation:  

a) Total fair value of assets (including 

interest income)  

 
1535.01  

 
1484.56 

b) Total PF obligation (including interest  

cost)  

(1557.13)  (1484.56) 

Net liability (shortfall in contribution)  (22.12)  Nil 

Expenses recognised in Statement of 

Profit and Loss (including contribution  and 

shortfall as mentioned above)  

61.40  32.60  

 
Key assumptions used for actuarial valuation are as below:  

 
Particulars  For the year ended March 

31,2020  

For the year ended March 

31,2019  

Discount rate  6.5% 7.5% 

EPFO return  8.5% 8.65% 

Expected rate of return on investment  8.5% 8.65% 

 

 

Details of unfunded defined benefits are
 
as

 
follows:

 
Amount in Rs.

 
lacs

 

 
Description  Year 

ended 

March 

31,2020  

Year 

ended 

March 

31,2019  

Year 

ended 

March 

31,2020  

Year 

ended 

March 

31,2019  

PRMB  Other retirement 
benefit  (ORB)  

A Reconciliation of Opening and 

Closing Balances of Present  Value 

of Obligation  

    

 a. DBO at beginning of the year  44.78 45.84 345.15 332.76 
 b.Current Service Cost  - - - - 

 c.Interest Cost  3.31 3.32 25.03 24.16 

 d.Acquisition Cost  - - - - 

 e.Actuarial (gains)/loss – arising 

from change in demographic  

assumption  

- - - - 

 f.Actuarial (gains)/loss – arising  

from change in financial 

assumption  

3.07 - 35.86 - 

. g. Actuarial (gains)/loss – arising  

from change in experience 

assumption  

(3.04) (1.23) 2.99 9.59 
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 h.Benefits paid  (1.36) (3.15) (22.87) (21.36) 
 i. DBO at the end of the year  46.76 44.78 386.16 345.15 

B1 Expense recognised      

 a. Current Service cost  - - - - 
 b. Interest cost  3.31 3.32 25.03 24.16 

B2. Expense recognised      

 c. Actuarial (gain)/ loss  0.03 (1.23) 38.85 9.59 

 d. Expense recognised in the 

statement of profit and loss during  

the year (a+b+c)  

3.34 (2.09) 63.88 33.75 

 
 

Details of compensated absences are  as  follows :  Amount in Rs.  lacs  

 
Description  Year 

ended 

March 

31,2020  

Year 

ended 

March 

31,2019  
  

Leave Salary  

A. Reconciliation of Opening and Closing Balances of Present Value of 

Obligation  

  

 a.DBO at beginning of the year  196.88  186.54 
 b.Current Service Cost  12.06  11.70 

 c.Interest Cost  14.20  13.10 

 d.Acquisition Cost  - - 

 e.Actuarial (gains)/loss  1.11  9.23 

 f.Benefits paid  (15.01)  (23.69) 
 g.DBO at the end of the year  209.24  196.88 

B Expense recognised    

 a. Current Service cost  12.06  11.70 
 b. Interest cost  14.20  13.10 

 c. Actuarial (gain)/loss  1.11  9.23 

 d. Expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss during the  

year (a+b+c)  

27.37  34.03 

 

25.05  The expenses for the above mentioned benefits have been disclosed under the following line items:

 i) Compensated Absence and ORB - under Salaries and wages, including bonus.

 ii) Gratuity- under Contribution to provident and other funds.

 iii) PRMB- under Staff Welfare Expense.
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25.06  The table below outlines the effect on obligation in the event of a decrease/increase of 1% in the assumption used.

As at March 31, 2020  

PRMB  
Particulars  Changes in assumption  Impact on Scheme Liabilities  

Discount Rate  Increase by 1%, decrease by 
1% 

Decrease by Rs. 3.07 l acs/ Increase by 

Rs.3.49 lacs  

Compensated Absence  

Discount Rate  Increase by 1%, decrease by 
1% 

Decrease by Rs.14.52 lacs/ Increase by 
Rs.16.76 lacs  

Salary escalation  Increase by 1%, decrease by  
1% 

Increase by Rs.16.52 lacs/ Decrease by  
Rs. 14.59 lacs  

Other Retirement Benefit - Ex Director Pension  

Discount Rate  Increase by 1%, decrease by  
1% 

Decrease by Rs. 35.86 lacs/ Increase by  
Rs.42.25 lacs  

Pension Escalation  Increase by 1%, decrease by  
1% 

Increase  by Rs. 39.91 lacs/  Decrease  
by Rs. 34.61 lacs  

 
As at March 31, 2019  
PRMB  

Discount Rate  Increase by 1%, decrease by 
1% 

Decrease by Rs. 2.85 lacs Increase by 

Rs 3.23 lacs  

Compensated Absence  

Discount Rate  Increase by 1%, decrease by 
1% 

Decrease by Rs. 13.33 lacs/ Increase by 

Rs. 15.28 lacs  

Salary esca lation  Increase by 1%, decrease by 
1% 

Increase by Rs. 15.21 lacs/ Decrease by 

Rs. 13.52 lacs  

Other Retirement Benefit - Ex Director Pension  

Discount Rate  Increase by 1%, decrease by 
1% 

Decrease by Rs. 31.46 lacs/ Increase by 

Rs. 37.00 lacs  

Pension Escal ation Increase by 1%, decrease by 
1% 

Increase by Rs. 35.30 lacs/ Decrease by 

Rs. 30.62 lacs  

 

 Other General expenses and Employees Benefit Expenses include amount incurred for Corporate Social
  Responsibility Expenditure as required under section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.

26. Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure

Particulars  For the year ended 
March 31,2020  

Rs Lacs  

For the year ended 
March 31,2019 

Rs Lacs 

a) Gross amount required to be 
spent by the company during the 
year 

15.51  18.50  

b) Amount spent during the year  on:  
i) Construction/ acquisition  of 

any asset  
ii)  Donation to Prime  Minister 

Relief  Fund 

 
- 

 
- 

- - 

iii) On purpose other than (i) and  
(ii) above  

14.41  18.73  
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28.A.Financial instruments

 Basis its assessment of the impact of the outbreak of Coronavirus (COVID-19) on its business operations, 
the Company’s Management concludes that no adjustments are required in the financial statements. 
However, the situation with COVID-19 is still evolving and the various preventive measures taken by the 
Government of India are still in force, leading to a highly uncertain economic environment. Due to these 
circumstances, the Management’s assessment of the impact on the subsequent period is dependent upon 
circumstances as they evolve.

28.03Disclosures on Financial instruments

 Financial Assets and Liabilities

 The following table presents carrying amount and fair value of each category of financial assets and 
liabilities:

 This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and provides
  additional information on balance sheet items that contain financial instruments.

 The details of significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of 
measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognized, in respect of each class of 
financial assets, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note 2.09 to the financial 
statements.

27. COVID-19 Impact Assessment

28.01Capital Management

28.02Gearing Ratio

 The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follow;

 The Company’s Capital Management is intended to create value for shareholders by facilitating the 
achievement of long-term and short-term goals of the company. The Company determines the amount of 
capital required on the basis of annual operating plans. The capital structure of the company consists of 
equity contributed by shareholders. Company does not have borrowed fund.
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Particulars  As at March 31 ,2020  

(Rs Lacs)  

As at March 31,2019  

(Rs Lacs)  

Debt  -  -  

Cash & Cash Equivalent  65.21  425.26  

Total Equity  5,792.75  5,401.29  

Net Debt Equity Ratio  (0.01)  (0.08)  

As at March 31,2020   Amount in Rs.  Lacs  

Financial Assets  Amortized 

Cost  

Fair Value 

through OCI  

Fair Value 

through Profit &  
Loss (FVTPL)  

Total Carrying 

Value  

Investment  -  -  3,026.59  3,026.59  

Trade receivables  2,050.77  -  -  2050.77  

Cash and cash  65.21  -  -  65.21  
equivalents      

Other balances  with  501.97  -  -  501.97  
bank      

Other financial assets  329.65  -  -  329.65  
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As at March 31, 2019  

Financial Liabilities  Amortized 

Cost  

Fair Value 

through OCI  

Fair Value 

through Profit & 

Loss(FVTPL)  

Total Carrying 

Value  

Trade Payable  2,006.73  -  -  2,006.73  

Other financial  218.45  -  -  218.45  

liabilities      

This level of hierarchy includes financial assets that are measured by reference to quoted price 
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. This category consists quoted equity shares, 
quoted corporate debt instruments and mutual fund investments.

Fair value hierarchy

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial 
recognition at fair value, grouped into Level 1 to Level 3, as described below.

Quoted price in an active market (Level 1):

This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabilities, measured using inputs other than quoted 
prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the assets or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or 
indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).

Valuation techniques with observable inputs (Level 2):

As at March 31, 2020  

Financial Liabilities  Amortized 

Cost  

Fair Value  

through OCI  

Fair Value  

through Profit & 

Loss(FVTPL)  

Total Carrying  

Value  

Trade Payable  2,275.32  -  -  2,275.32  

Other financial liabilities  227.98  -  -  227.98  

As at March 31, 2019  
Financial Assets  Amortized 

Cost  

Fair Value  
through OCI  

Fair Value  
through Profit &   

Loss (FVTPL)  

Total Carrying  
Value  

Investment  -  -  2,492.85  2,492.85  

Trade receivables  2,110.69  -  -  2,110.69  

Cash and cash  425.26  -  -  425.26  
equivalents      

Other balances with  470.86  -  -  470.86  
bank      

Other financial assets  30.82  -  -  30.82  



Valuation techniques with significant unobservable inputs (Level 3):

This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabilities, measured using inputs that are not Based on   
observable  market  data   (unobservable  inputs).  Fair  values  are  determined  in  whole  or    in part, 
using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable 
current market transactions in the same instrument nor are  they  based on available market data.

Some of the company’s Financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each 
reporting period.
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Notes:

i) Current financial assets and liabilities are stated at carrying value which is approximately equal to the
 fair value.

ii) Investment carried at their fair value, are generally based on market price quotations. The fair value in
  respect of the unquoted equity investments cannot be reliably measured.

iii) Management used its best judgment in estimating the fair value of its financial instruments. However, there 
are inherent limitations in any estimation technique. Therefore, for substantially all financial instruments, 
the fair value estimates presented above are not necessarily indicative of all the amounts that the Company 
could have realized or paid in sale transactions as of respective dates.

 As such, the fair value of the financial instruments subsequent to the reporting dates may be different from 
the amounts reported at each reporting date.

iv) There have been no transfers between level 1 and level 2 for the years ended March 31, 2020 and March 
31, 2019.

28.04 Financial risk management objective

 In the course of its business the company is exposed primarily to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange 
rates, interest rates, equity prices, liquidity and credit risk, which may adversely impact the fair value of its 
financial instruments. The Company has a risk management policy  which not only covers the  foreign  
exchange  risks  but  also  other  risks  associated  with  the   financial  assets   and liabilities such as 
interest rate and  credit risks. The risk management policy is approved by the Board  of directors. The risk 
management framework aims to:

 i) Create a stable business planning environment by reducing the impact of currency and interest rate
  fluctuations on the Company’s business plan.

 ii) Achieve greater predictability to earnings by determining the financial value of the expected earning in
  advance.

Market risk is the risk of any loss in future earnings, in realizable fair values or in future cash flows that may result 
from a change in the price of a financial instrument. The value of a financial instrument may change as a result of 
changes in the interest rates, foreign currency exchange rate, equity price fluctuations, liquidly and other market 
changes. Future specific market movements cannot be normally predicted with reasonable accuracy.

28.05 Market Risk

 

Financial 

Assets  

As at  Fair  Value 

hierarchy  

Valuation  techniques 

and key  inputs  

March 31,2020  March 31,2019    

Investment in  
Mutual Fund  

Rs. 3,026.59 lacs  Rs. 2,492.85 lacs  Level 1  NAV from mutual fund  
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28.07 Interest rate risk management

The company is not exposed to interest rate risk for working capital requirement. No significant interest rate 
exposure risks as the company does not have any borrowing.

The dividend declared by the company is based on profit available for distribution as reported in the financial 
statement of the company. On May 21, 2020, the Board of Director have proposed a dividend of Rs. 100 per 
ordinary share in respect of the year ended March 31, 2020 subject to approval of shareholder at Annual General 
Meeting.

28.08 Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss arising from counterparty failure to repay or service debt according to the 
contractual terms or obligations. Credit risk encompasses both the direct risk of default and the risk of 
deterioration or creditworthiness as well as concentration risks. Financial instruments that are subject to 
concentrations of credit risk, principally consist of investments, trade receivables, loans and derivatives financial 
instruments. None of the financial instruments of the Company result in material concentrations of credit risks. 
The risk relating to trade receivables is shown under note No. 7.

28.09 Liquidity risk management

28.06 Foreign currency Risk Management

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity 
risk management is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per 
requirements. The Company invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposit and scheme of mutual funds, which 
carry no/low mark to market risk.

The table below provides the details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities:-

28.B. Proposed Dividend

The fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rate may have potential impact on the statement of profit and loss 
and equity. The Company as per the risk management policy, any weaking of the functional currency may impact 
the company’s cost of imports. Appreciation/depreciation of foreign currency by 5% with respect to functional 
currency of the company would result in decrease/increase in the company’s net income before tax by 
approximately Rs. Nil (Rs. Nil for the year end March 31, 2019) for financial liabilities.

31, 2019

31, 2020

 Carrying  

amount  

Contractual  

Cash  flows  

Less than  

1 year  

Between  

1-5 year  

More than  

5 year  

Non derivative financial liabilities  

Tra de Payable  2,275.32  2,275.32  2,219.65  55.67  - 

Other financial 

liabilities  

227.98  227.98  98.64  129.34  - 

Financial Liabilities as at March    Amount in Rs.  lacs  

 Carrying  

amount  

Contractual  

Cash  flows  

Less than  

1 year  

Between  

1-5 year  

More than  

5 year  

Non derivative financial liabilities  

Trade Payable  2,006.73  2,006.73  2,006.73  - - 

Other financial 

liabilities  

218.45  218.45  86.61  131.84  - 

Financial Liabilities as at March    Amount in Rs.  lacs  
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The Tata Pigments Limited
Notes to the financial statements 

        Amount in  Rs. lacs
                   For the year ended       For the year ended 
      March 31, 2020   March 31, 2019
29   Contingent Liabilities and commitments    
 (a)  Contingent Liabilities
  a. Sales Tax demands against which appeals are pending 760.33 824.58

 d) Amount of interest  accrued during    
  the year and remains unpaid at the end of the year.  0.93 - 

 c) The  amount of interest due and payable for the period 
  of delay in making payment (which have beenpaid but 
  beyond the appointed day during the year) but without 
  adding the interest specified uner this Act.    0.93 -   

30   Earnings per Share

 The Earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share 
 are as follows   

  f. Service Tax  1.67 49.93
  e. Other amounts for which the company is contigently liable 4.39 4.39

       Rs. per share   Rs. per share 

 Weighted average number of equity shares  used as the   75,000   75,000 
 denominator in calculating  basic and diluted  earnings per share

 Profit  from operation attributable to ordinary shareholder of  531.65 487.81

  Estimated value of contracts in capital account remaining to   37.50     -   
  be executed on capital account and not provide for

 (b)  Capital Commitments   

      Nos.   Nos. 

 Basic Earnings per share    708.87 650.41
 Diluted Earnings per share    708.87 650.41

 the company - for Basic and Diluted EPS ( Rs lacs)   

  b. Claim by ex C & F Agent  14.27 14.27

  d. Employees State Insurance matters  264.43 240.64

 
 a) The principal amount remaining unpaid to   90.33 29.39

31 The amount due to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information 
available with the Company. The disclosures relating to Micro and Small Enterprises are as below    

  c. Entry Tax demands  145.28 145.28

  supplier as at the end of the year
 b) The interest due  thereon  remaining unpaid   

  to supplier as at the end of the year  380.09 - 
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Primary Segment Information (Business Segment) 

Particulars     Pigments & Paints  Service Contract Unallocable Total

Total revenue     8,090.27  4,222.00 164.14 12,476.41

          (685.71)

Less: Finance Cost       8.37

Profit before tax        711.16

Tax expenses        179.51

          (9.12)

    

 

Segment Assets     4,630.99  1,487.49 3,112.59 9,231.07

The Tata Pigments Limited
Notes to the financial statements     Amount  in Rs. lacs
    

32.   SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment  revenue

External revenue     8,090.27  4,222.00 164.14 12,476.41

Inter Segment revenue    -      -     -     -   

       (-)    (-)   (-)   (-) 

      (8,882.36)  (2,738.36) (143.71) (11,764.43)

          (685.71)

Exceptional items        -

      (8,882.36)  (2,738.36) (143.71) (11,764.43)

Segment results before finance costs,   
exceptioanl items and tax   324.37  231.02 164.14 719.53
      (395.65)  (155.48) (143.70) (694.83)

          (197.90)

Profit after tax        531.65

Profit before tax        711.16

          -

          (487.81)

      (4,864.13)  (1,039.51) (2,567.97) (8,471.61)

Segment Liabilities     2,596.68  841.64 - 3,438.32

      (2,264.76)  (747.23) (58.33) (3,070.32)

Capital expenditure    79.59  - - 79.59

      (24.92)  -  (24.92)

Segment depreciation    143.05  - - 143.05

      (138.78)  - - (138.78)

Figure in bracket indicate previous year number
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The Tata Pigments Limited
Notes to the financial statements     Amount  in Rs. lacs
    

Secondary  Segment Information (Geographical Segment)

         March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

 Within India       12,449.25 11,726.43

 Outside India      27.16 38.00

Segment Revenue  

Capital Expenditure  

 Within India       79.59 24.92

 Outside India      - -

Segment Assets  

 Within India       9,231.07 8,471.61

 Outside India      - -

 2) Segment Revenue, Segment Results, Segment Assets and Segment Liabilities include the respective amounts identifitable to 
each of the segments as also amounts allocated on a reasonable basis. The expenses, which are not directly relatable to the 
business segment, are shown as unallocated. Assets and liabilities that cannot be allocated between the segments are shown 
as unallocated assets and liabilities respectively.

 1) The Company has disclosed Business Segment as the primery segment. Segments have been identified taking into account 
the nature of the products, the differing risks and returns, the organisational structure and internal reporting system. The 
Company's operation predominantly relate to manufacturure of Oxide of Iron and Decorative Product and other Service 
Contract.

 Additional Information :    
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The Tata Pigments Limited
Notes to the financial statements      Amount  in Rs. lacs
    

33.   Related Party Transaction : 
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Description of 
Transaction

 
Name of the Related Party

 
Relations hip

 

Year  ended
March 31,

2020

Year 

ended 

March 31,

2019

 Purchase of Raw Materials

 
 

Tata Steel Limited

 
 

Holding Company

 
 

5.57 130.74

The Tinplate Company of India Limited
 

Fellow Subsidiary
 

74.94 88.30

 
Purchase of Power

 
 

Tata Steel Limited

 
 

Holding Company

 
 

262.62 268.00

Purchase of Fuel

 

Tata Steel Limited

 

Holding Company

 

337.82 384.42

Purchase of Water

 

Tata Steel Limited

 

Holding Company

 

48.52 42.31

 

Sale of Products

 

 

Tata Steel Limited

 
 

Holding Company

 
 

28.46 16.21
Tata Steel Utilities & Infrastructure Services Ltd.

 

Fellow Subsidiary

 

- 3.87
(Formerly Jamshedpur Utilities & Services 
Company Ltd.)

 
  

Receiving of Services :

    

Medical Charges

 

Tata Steel Limited

 

Holding Company

 

43.92 49.12

Municipal Charges

 

Tata Steel Limited

 

Holding Company

 

41.92 47.77

Internal Audit fees

 

Tata Steel Limited

 

Holding Company

 

14.88 13.60

Salary & Wages -Deputation 
Charges

 

Tata Steel Limited

 

Holding Company

 

29.41 21.92

SAP Maintenance fees

 

Tata Steel Limited

 

Holding Company

 

90.91 59.56

Rent

 

Tata Steel Limited

 

Holding Company

 

35.12 43.03

Carnival & Other Services

 

Tata Steel Utilities & Infrastructure Services 
Ltd . (Formerly Jamshedpur Utilities & 
Services Company Ltd.)

 

Fellow Subsidiary

 

2.30 -

Rent for Guest house

 

Indian Steel & Wire Products Ltd.

 

Fellow Subsidiary

 

0.36 0.76

 

Sale of of Services -

 

Painting

 
 

Tata Steel Limited

 
 

Holding Company

 
 

3,081.07 2,685.78
The Tinplate Company of India Limited

 

Fellow Subsidiary

 

27.12 53.74
Tata Steel BSL

 

Fellow Subsidiary

 

323.48 58.39
Indian Steel & Wire Products Ltd.

 

Fellow Subsidiary

 

- 9.17

Tata Steel Utilities & Infrastructure Services 

Ltd . (Formerly Jamshedpur Utilities & 

Services Company Ltd.)

 

Fellow Subsidiary

 

27.22 41.48

Tata Steel Long Product Ltd

 

Fellow Subsidiary

 

12.06 -

Jamipol Ltd.

 

Joint Venture of Holding 
Company

 

2.17 -

TRF Ltd.

 

Associate of Holding Company

 

250.19 106.17

 

Dividend paid

 
 

Tata Steel Limited

 
 

Holding Company

 
 

75.00 75.00

 

Managerial Remuneration

 
 

Mr. Shubhenjit Chaudhuri

 
 

Managing Director

 
 

90.15 79.91
Mr. Dinesh Agarwal

 

Chief of Finance & Accounts

 

35.52 35.14
Mr. V.Natarajan

 

Ex-AGM(Corporate Services & 
Compliance officer) Ex-Cum 
Company Secretary

 

16.58 20.58

 
 

 

Nature of Outstanding

 

Name of the Related Party

 

Relationship

 

Year ended 

March 31, 

2020

Year ended 

March 31,

2019

Outstanding Payable

 

Tata Steel Limited

 

Holding Company

 

161.92 136.92
Tata Steel Utilities & Infrastructure Services Ltd.

 

Fellow Subsidiary

 

0.15 0.15

 

Outstanding Receivable

  

Tata Steel

 

Limited

  

Holding Company

  

1,052.54 725.60
Indian Steel & Wire Products Ltd.

 

Fellow Subsidiary

 

1.08 1.07

Tata Steel Utilities & Infrastructure Services 

Ltd . (Formerly Jamshedpur Utilities & 

Services Company Ltd.)

Fellow Subsidiary

 

36.31 50.56

TRF Ltd. Associate of Holding Company 191.80 155.82

The Tinplate Company of India Limited Fellow Subsidiary 16.36 2.56
Tata Steel BSL Fellow Subsidiary 15.86 9.53
Tata Steel Long product Ltd Fellow Subsidiary 12.06 -

Jamipol Ltd. Joint Venture 2.17 -

Advance Paid Tata Steel Limited Holding Company 13.58 -

The Tinplate Company of India Limited Fellow Subsidiary 4.28 4.50



           

         

    

34. The Company has evaluated the impact of the recent Supreme Court Judgment in case of "Vivekananda Vidyamandir And Others Vs 
The Regional Provident Fund Commissioner (II) West Bengal" and the related circular (Circular No. C-I/1(33)2019/Vivekananda Vidya 
Mandir/284) dated March   20, 2019 issued by the Employees’ Provident Fund Organisation in relation to non-exclusion of certain 
allowances from the definition of "basic   wages" of the relevant employees for the purposes of determining contribution to provident 
fund under the Employees' Provident Funds & Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952. In the assessment of the management these 
amounts are not payable and have not been deposited during the year. The aforesaid matter is not likely to have a significant impact 
and accordingly no provision has been made in these financial statements.        

          

36. Previous Year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified where ever necessary to correspond with the current year's 
classification/disclosure. 

The Tata Pigments Limited
Notes to the financial statements     Amount  in Rs. lacs

35. Pursuant to the issuance of The Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019 on September 20,2019 which is applicable for AY 2020-
21, Company has opted to pay tax at concessional rate of 22% and has computed current tax and deferred tax applying this rate.
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP       
Chartered Accountants      
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E300009    

Sanjiv Paul
Chairman 
(DIN: 00086974) 

Gautam Wadhera
Partner
Membership No 508835

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 21, 2020

Umesh Kumar Singh
Executive Director
(DIN : 08708676)

Dinesh Agarwal
Chief of Finance & Accounts

Place : Jamshedpur
Date : May 21, 2020
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